
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
Paul Casey 

City Administrator 
 Gregg Hart 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Randy Rowse 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Ariel Pierre Calonne 
City Attorney

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Frank Hotchkiss 
Cathy Murillo 
Bendy White 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov
 

NOVEMBER 24, 2015 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 

REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  If you need auxiliary aids or services or staff assistance to attend or participate 
in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s Office at 564-5305.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior 
to the meeting will usually enable the City to make reasonable arrangements. Specialized services, such as sign language 
interpretation or documents in Braille, may require additional lead time to arrange. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 



11/24/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 12:30 p.m. - Finance Committee Meeting, David Gebhard Public Meeting Room, 
   630 Garden Street 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting  
 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:30 P.M. IN THE DAVID GEBHARD PUBLIC 
MEETING ROOM, 630 GARDEN STREET (120.03)  

Subject:  Fiscal Year 2016 First Quarter Review (120.03) 

Recommendation: That Finance Committee recommend that Council: 
A. Accept the Fiscal Year 2016 interim financial statements for the three months 

ended September 30, 2015; and 
B. Approve the proposed first quarter adjustments to Fiscal Year 2016 

appropriations and estimated revenues as detailed in the attached Schedule of 
Proposed First Quarter Budget Adjustments. 

(See Council Agenda Item No. 2) 



11/24/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
 
AFTERNOON SESSION 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of the regular meeting of November 10, 2015. 
  

2. Subject:  Fiscal Year 2016 First Quarter Review (250.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept the Fiscal Year 2016 interim financial statements for the three 

months ended September 30, 2015; and 
B. Approve the proposed first quarter adjustments to Fiscal Year 2016 

appropriations and estimated revenues as detailed in the Schedule of 
Proposed First Quarter Budget Adjustments. 

 

3. Subject:  October 2015 Investment Report (260.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the October 2015 Investment Report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11/24/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

4. Subject:  Approval Of Final Map And Execution Of Agreements For 210 
Meigs Road And Acceptance Of Adjacent Easement At Washington School 
(330.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve and authorize the City Administrator to execute and record Final 

Map Number 20,815 and standard agreements relating to the approved 
subdivision at 210 Meigs Road, and authorize the City Engineer to record, 
upon completion of any required public improvements, a recital document 
stating that the public improvements have been completed and that the 
previously recorded Land Development Agreement may be removed from 
the title document; and  

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Accepting a New Water and Sewer Easement on Santa 
Barbara Unified School District Property, known as Washington 
Elementary School, Located at 290 Lighthouse Road. 

5. Subject:  Purchase Order For The Maintenance And Repair Of The El Estero 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Digester No. 1 Lining (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A.  Find that it is in the best interest of the City to waive formal bidding 

requirements section 4.52.070(L) of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code; 
and 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a Purchase Order with 
Olympos Painting, Inc., in the amount of $191,000 for maintenance and 
repair of the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant Digester No. 1, and 
authorize the Public Works Director to approve expenditures up to 
$19,100 to cover any cost increases that may result from necessary 
changes in the scope of work. 

6. Subject:  Increase In Construction Change Order Authority For Cabrillo 
Boulevard Bridge Replacement/Anacapa Street Crosswalk Enhancement 
(530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept Highway Safety Improvement Program grant funding increase in 

the amount of $270,000 for a revised total amount of $763,500 for the 
Cabrillo Boulevard at Anacapa Street Crosswalk Enhancement Project; 

B. Authorize an increase in appropriations and estimated revenues related to 
the Highway Safety Improvement Program grant funding by $270,000 in 
the Fiscal Year 2016 Streets Grant Fund to cover a portion of the cost of 
construction for the Cabrillo Boulevard at Anacapa Street Crosswalk 
Enhancement Project; 

(Cont’d) 



11/24/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
6. (Cont’d) 

 
C. Approve the transfer of $180,000 in available appropriations from the 

Streets Capital Fund to the Streets Grant Fund for the City's share of the 
construction cost for the Cabrillo Boulevard at Anacapa Street Crosswalk 
Enhancement Project; 

D. Authorize an increase in the Public Works Director's Change Order 
Authority to approve expenditures for extra work for the Cabrillo Boulevard 
at Anacapa Street Crosswalk Enhancement Project, Contract No. 24,977, 
in the amount of $430,512.50, for a total contract expenditure authority of 
$15,818,578.00; and 

E. Authorize an increase in the extra services amount with Bengal 
Engineering, Incorporated, for design support services during construction 
for the Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project, Contract No. 
24,979, in the amount of $43,122.50, for a total contract expenditure 
authority of $292,624.50. 

 

7. Subject:  Contract For Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rate Modeling Services 
(540.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
City Professional Services contract with Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc., in 
the amount of $50,221 for development of proposed water rates for Fiscal Year 
2017, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve expenditures of up to 
$12,555 for extra services that may result from necessary changes in the scope 
of work, for a total not-to-exceed amount of $62,776. 
  

8. Subject: Cancellation Of Certain Council Meetings In 2016 (120.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council cancel the regular Council Meetings on the 
following dates:  January 5, January 19, February 16, April 5, May 31, July 5, 
August 16, August 23, August 30, November 29, December 20, and December 
27, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11/24/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

9. Subject:  Collection Of High Resolution 3D Elevation/Terrain Data (LiDAR) 
(170.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve the expenditure of $75,000 and authorize the Administrative 

Services Director to negotiate, subject to approval by the City Attorney, an 
agreement with Channel Islands Regional Geographic Information 
Systems Collaborative for the acquisition and processing of High 
Resolution 3D Elevation/Terrain Data for the City's Centralized 
Geographic Information System; and approve an additional $7,500 for 
contingency costs that may be necessary; and 

B. Appropriate $82,500 from Information Systems Fund Reserves to the 
Fiscal Year 2016 Information Systems Budget for this purpose. 
 

10. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance Amending Chapter 2.04 Of The Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code Pertaining To Council Meetings (120.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Chapter 2.04 of the Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code Pertaining to Council Meetings. 
  

NOTICES 

11. The City Clerk has on Thursday, November 19, 2015, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
REPORT FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11/24/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 6 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

12. Subject:  Certification Of The Election Results Of The Official Canvass For 
The General Municipal Election Of November 3, 2015 (110.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara Reciting the Fact of the Vote-By-Mail General Municipal 
Election Held on November 3, 2015, Declaring the Results and Such 
Other Matters as Required by the State Elections Code; and 

B. Receive a final presentation on the November 3, 2015 Election. 
 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

13. Subject:  Approval Of The Citywide Wayfinding Directional Signage 
Program Including Project Funding And Installation Plan (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve the Citywide Wayfinding Directional 
Signage Program and authorize the Public Works Director to implement the 
installation of the signage as outlined in the recommended phasing plan and 
provide staff direction on funding future phases of the Wayfinding program. 
  

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

14. Subject:  Request From Councilmembers Rowse And Francisco Regarding 
Recreational Vehicle Restrictions (550.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council consider the request from Councilmembers 
Rowse and Francisco regarding Municipal Code 10.44.205(b), to forward to 
Ordinance Committee the addition of Item No. 10, any other land deemed 
sensitive by the Chief of Police and the Public Works Director to the list of land 
uses that may have restricted recreational vehicle parking. 
  

 
COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (IF NECESSARY) 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 



 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

MEETING AGENDA 

 

DATE: November 24, 2015 Dale Francisco, Chair 

TIME: 12:30 P.M.  Bendy White  

PLACE: David Gebhard Public Meeting Room Gregg Hart 

 630 Garden Street  
 

Paul Casey  Robert Samario 

City Administrator Finance Director 
         
 
 

ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED: 
 
 

Subject:  Fiscal Year 2016 First Quarter Review 
 

Recommendation:  That the Finance Committee recommend that Council: 
A. Accept the Fiscal Year 2016 interim financial statements for the three months 

ended September 30, 2015; and 
B. Approve the proposed first quarter adjustments to Fiscal Year 2016 appropriations 

and estimated revenues as detailed in the Schedule of Proposed First Quarter 
Budget Adjustments. 

 
    (See Council Agenda Item No. 2) 



11/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
November 10, 2015 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. (The Finance 
Committee and Ordinance Committee, which ordinarily meet at 12:30 p.m. did not meet 
on this date.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Gregg Hart, Frank Hotchkiss, Cathy Murillo, Randy Rowse, 
Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  Dale Francisco. 
Staff present:  City Administrator Paul Casey, City Attorney Ariel Pierre Calonne, 
Deputy City Clerk Deborah L. Applegate. 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 

1. Subject:  Employee Recognition - Service Award Pins (410.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the 
City's appreciation to employees who are eligible to receive service award pins for 
their years of service through November 30, 2015. 
 
Documents: 
 November 10, 2015, report from the Administrative Services Director. 
 
Speakers: 
 Staff:  City Administrator Paul Casey. 
 

 
 

 (Cont’d) 

NOV 24 2015 #1 



11/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

1. (Cont’d) 
 
 By consensus, the Council approved the recommendation, and the following 

employees were recognized: 
 

5-Year Pin 

Kyle Crooks, Police Officer, Police Department 

Sarah Fox, Records Technician, Administrative Services Department 

Julio Gonzalez-Vasquez, Water District Operator II, Public Works Department 

Jesus Jaimes, Senior Water District Operator, Public Works Department 

David Rowell, Project Planner, Community Development Department 

Andrew Ruiz, Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator II, Public Works Department 

Ramon Urrutia, Wastewater Collection Systems Operator II, Public Works Department 

10-Year Pin 

Heather Clark, Police Officer, Police Department 

Kasi Corbett, Police Officer, Police Department 

Brian Miller, Police Officer, Police Department 

Moises Tinajera, Senior Water District Operator, Public Works Department 

Matthew Tonello, Police Officer, Police Department 

15-Year Pin 

Martin Goliszewski, Waterfront Maintenance Worker II, Waterfront Department 

Camerino Sanchez, Police Chief, Police Department 

Ignacio Valdez, Grounds Maintenance Crew Leader, Parks and Recreation Department 

25-Year Pin 

Mirna Dubon, Administrative Specialist, Police Department 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Andrea Roselinsky; Phil Walker; Fred Sweeney; Scott Wenz, Cars Are Basic; 
Dave Hopkins; Bob Stout, Downtown Santa Barbara; Richard Robinson; Stephen Cruver, 
Common Ground Santa Barbara; Sharon Byrne, Milpas Community Association. 
 
Councilmember Francisco arrived at 2:16 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

4. Subject:  A Resolution Denying The Appeal Of The Montecito Association 
And Upholding The Decision Of The Parks And Recreation Commission 
Regarding Tree Removal At 1187 Coast Village Road. (570.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution Of 
The Council Of The City Of Santa Barbara Denying The Appeal Of The Montecito 
Association And Upholding The Decision Of The Parks and Recreation 
Commission To Approve The Removal of Two Canary Island Pine Trees Located 
In The Front Setback at 1187 Coast Village Road, Pursuant to Council's Direction 
of October, 2015. 

Councilmember Hotchkiss stated he would abstain from voting on the proposed 
resolution due to his absence from the site visit and Council meeting where the 
appeal was heard.   
 
Documents: 

- November 10, 2015, report from the City Attorney. 
- Proposed resolution. 

 
Motion: 

 Councilmembers Murillo/Hotchkiss to approve the Consent Calendar as 
recommended; Resolution No. 15-087. 

Vote: 
  Majority roll call vote.  (Abstentions:  Councilmember Hotchkiss)                                      
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 2 - 3, 5 - 18) 
 
The titles of the resolutions and ordinances related to Consent Calendar items were 
read. 

 
Motion: 
 Councilmembers Murillo/Hotchkiss to approve the Consent Calendar as 

recommended. 
Vote: 
 Unanimous roll call vote.                                                                              

2. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes of 
the adjourned regular meeting of October 19, 2015, the regular meetings of 
October 20 and 27, 2015, and the regular meeting (cancelled) of November 3, 
2015. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation. 



11/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 

3. Subject:  Reclassification Of Maintenance Worker Positions In The Facilities 
Management Division Of The Public Works Department (530.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the 
Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Resolution No. 15-056, the Position 
and Salary Control Resolution for Fiscal Year 2016, Affecting the Public Works 
Department, Effective November 14, 2015. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 15-086 (November 10, 
2015, report from the Administrative Services Director; proposed resolution). 

5. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance To Grant Easements To The County Flood 
Control District (150.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Granting of Easements on 
City-Owned Airport Properties to the County of Santa Barbara Flood Control and 
Water Conservation District for Flood Control and All Related Purposes, and 
Authorizing the City Administrator to Execute as Necessary the Grant Deeds in a 
Form Approved by the City Attorney. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5726. 

6. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of  Westside Sidewalk Access Ramp 
Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council award a contract with Brough Construction, Inc., 
in their low bid amount of $191,703 for construction of the Community 
Development Block Grant 2015-2016 Westside Sidewalk Access Ramp Project, 
Bid No. 3788, and authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract and 
approve expenditures up to $28,755 to cover any cost increases that may result 
from contract change orders for extra work and differences between estimated bid 
quantities and actual quantities measured for payment.                              

Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 25,358 (November 10, 
2015, report from the Public Works Director). 

7. Subject:  Contract For Design For The Zone 3 (Westside, Hidden Valley, 
Campanil, And West Mesa Neighborhoods) Pavement Maintenance Project 
(530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve the selection of Flowers & Associates, Inc., to provide professional 

engineering design and construction management services for the annual 
Pavement Maintenance Projects scheduled for Fiscal Years 2016 through 
2018; and 

(Cont’d) 
 



11/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 

7. (Cont’d) 
 
B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional Services 

contract with Flowers & Associates, Inc., in the amount of $106,544 for 
design services of the Fiscal Year 2016 Pavement Maintenance Project, 
and authorize the Public Works Director to approve expenditures of up to 
$10,656 for extra services that may result from necessary changes in the 
scope of work. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Agreement No. 25,359 (November 10, 
2015, report from the Public Works Director). 

8. Subject:  Emergency Increase In Purchase Order Authority For Repairs To 
The Laguna Channel (540.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the General Services Manager to 
increase an existing maintenance and repair purchase order with Granite 
Construction Company, Inc., by $84,000 for emergency repairs to the Laguna 
Channel for a new not-to-exceed total of $157,985. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation (November 10, 2015, report from the 
Public Works Director). 

9. Subject:  Contract Amendment With USGS For Groundwater Modeling In 
Support Of Studying The Feasibility Of Alternatives To Screened Ocean 
Intake For Desalination (540.10)   

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute 
an Amendment to the Joint Funding Agreement with the United States Geological 
Survey (USGS) for groundwater modeling services in the amount of $66,400, and 
approve expenditures of up to $15,000 for extra services that may result from 
unforeseen changes in the scope of work, raising the City's portion of cost in the 
Joint Funding Agreement to $488,325. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 23,253.2 (November 10, 
2015, report from the Public Works Director). 

10. Subject:  Aircraft Noise Monitoring And Flight Tracking Services License 
And Maintenance / Technical Support Agreement (560.14) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the City's General Services Manager to execute a 12-month 

agreement with Harris Inc. in the amount of $71,000 pursuant to the Sole 
Source provisions of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 
4.52.070(K) for flight tracking services and maintenance and technical 
support for noise monitoring equipment at the Airport; and 

(Cont’d) 
 



11/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 

10. (Cont’d) 
 
B. Authorize the City's General Services Manager to execute any agreements 

or change orders for a subsequent 12-months in the amount of $78,000, for 
a two-year contract total not to exceed $149,000. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Agreement No. 25,360 (November 10, 
2015, report from the Airport Director. 

11. Subject:  Donation For Police K9 Program (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept a donation of $20,000 from the Santa 
Barbara Police Foundation for the Police K9 Program Trust Fund. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation (November 10, 2015, report from the Chief 
of Police). 

12. Subject:  Donations For Animal Control Program Equipment (520.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept a donation of $4,500 from the Deborah K. Oldham Trust of 2001;  
B. Approve an increase in appropriations and estimated revenues in the 

amount of $4,500 in Fiscal Year 2016 in the Police Department 
Miscellaneous Grants Fund for Animal Control equipment that will help 
enhance public safety and service;  

C. Accept a donation of $8,310 from Stephen and Joy Frank; and 
D. Approve an increase in appropriations and estimated revenues in the 

amount of $8,310 in Fiscal Year 2016 in the Police Department 
Miscellaneous Grants Fund for an all-terrain vehicle (ATV) which will 
enhance public safety and service. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (November 10, 2015, report from the 
Chief of Police). 

13. Subject:  Appropriation Of Human Services Grant Funds For Youth 
Apprenticeship And Santa Barbara Arts Alliance Programs (570.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council increase appropriations and estimated revenues 
in the Fiscal Year (FY) 2016 Parks and Recreation Department Miscellaneous 
Grant Fund, in the amount of $15,000, for two Human Services Grant awards. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation (November 10, 2015, report from the 
Acting Parks and Recreation Director). 

 

 



11/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 

14. Subject:  Contributions From Parks And Recreation Community 
Foundation (570.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept a contribution from the Parks and Recreation Community (PARC) 

Foundation in the amount of $45,000 for Parks and Recreation Department  
programs; and 

B. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues in the Fiscal Year (FY) 
2016 Parks and Recreation Department Miscellaneous Grants Fund in the 
amount of $45,000. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (November 10, 2015, report from the  
Acting Parks and Recreation Director). 

15. Subject:  Police Officer And Public Safety Dispatcher Recruitment Incentive 
Program (520.04) 

 
Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 

Barbara Establishing a Police Officer Recruitment Incentive Program 
Providing Referral Incentives for City Employees and Hiring Incentives for 
New Police Officers; and 

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara  Establishing a Public Safety Dispatcher Recruitment Incentive 
Program Providing Referral Incentives for City Employees and Hiring 
Incentives for New Public Safety Dispatchers. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Resolution No. 15-088 and 15-089 
(November 10, 2015, report from the Chief of Police; proposed resolutions). 

CONSENT PUBLIC HEARING 

16. Subject:  TEFRA (Tax Equity And Fiscal Responsibility Act) Hearing For 510 
N. Salsipuedes (Jardin De Las Rosas Apartments) Debt Issuance  (660.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a public hearing and adopt, by reading of 
title only, A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving 
the Issuance of Revenue Bonds by the California Municipal Finance Authority in 
an Aggregate Principal Amount not to exceed $15,000,000 for the Purpose of 
Financing the Acquisition, Construction, Improvement, and Equipping of a 40-unit 
Multifamily Rental Housing Facility and Certain Other Matters Relating Thereto. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 15-090 (November 10, 
2015, report from the Finance Director). 
 
 



11/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 

NOTICES 

17. The City Clerk has on Thursday, November 5, 2015, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony 
of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

18. A City Council site visit is scheduled for Monday, November 16, 2015, at 1:30 p.m. 
to the property located at 806 Alberta Avenue, which is the subject of an appeal 
hearing set for November 17, 2015, at 2:00 p.m. 

 
This concluded the Consent Calendar. 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

CITY ATTORNEY 

19. Subject:  Updated City Council Rules Of Procedure (120.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance Of 

The Council Of The City Of Santa Barbara Amending Chapter 2.04 Of The 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code Pertaining To Council Meetings; and 

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution Of The Council Of The City Of 
Santa Barbara Adopting Rules Of Procedure Governing The Conduct Of 
City Council Meetings And Rescinding Resolution No. 09-097. 

 
Documents: 

- November 10, 2015, report from the City Attorney. 
- Proposed ordinance. 
- Proposed resolution. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
The title of the ordinance and resolution were read. 
 
Speakers: 
  Staff: City Attorney Ariel Calonne. 
 
Motion: 
  Councilmembers Francisco/Rowse to approve the recommendations with a 

modification to 4.11 of the revised procedures giving Speakers  until the end 
of the staff report to submit a “Request to Speak” form for that item.  

 
Amended Motion: 
  Councilmembers Francisco/Rowse to approve the recommendations with a 

modification to 4.11 striking the words, “prior” to the time that the item on 
the agenda is initially read by the Deputy City Clerk. 

Vote: 
  Unanimous roll call vote. 



11/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 9 

20. Subject:  Newly Adopted Medical Marijuana Legislation (160.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Receive an update on the potential impacts to the City of Santa Barbara 

resulting from new legislation regulating cultivation, sale, and licensing of 
medical marijuana;   

B. Provide direction to the Community Development Department and the City 
Attorney's Office related to mobile marijuana delivery services and the 
cultivation of marijuana for medicinal purposes within the City. 

 
Documents: 

- November 10, 2015, report from the City Attorney. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff.                      

 
Speakers: 
 - Staff:  City Attorney Callone; Assistant City Attorney Tava Ostrenger;  
 - Members of the Public:  Erie Bjorklund; David Bearman, M.D.; Phil Walker. 
 
Motion: 
  Councilmember Murillo moved for Council to direct staff to develop an 

ordinance allowing medical marijuana cultivation in residential zones for 
people with a medical prescription and to allow commercial cultivation in 
manufacturing zones.  

 
Motion died for lack of a second.  
 
Motion: 
  Councilmembers Hotchkiss/Francisco to direct staff to develop an 

ordinance allowing for personal cultivation of medical marijuana of up to 100 
square feet for residential zones and no commercial cultivation.   

 
Amended Motion: 
  Councilmembers Hotchkiss/Francisco to direct staff to develop an 

ordinance allowing for personal cultivation of medical marijuana of up to 100 
square feet for residential zones and residential occupancy within 
commercial zones and no commercial cultivation.  

Vote: 
  Unanimous roll call vote.     

21. Subject:  Short Term Residential Rental Subpoenas (350.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive certified copies of subpoenaed records 
related to unlawful vacation rentals that are subject to the City's Ordinance 
prohibiting their operation. 
 
 

(Cont’d) 



11/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 10 

21. (Cont’d) 
 
 Documents: 

- November 10, 2015, report from the City Attorney. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
Speakers: 
 Staff:  Deputy City Attorney John Doimas.   
  

 Councilmembers heard the report and their questions were answered. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
Information: 
 - Councilmember Rowse commented on his visit to the County of Santa Barbara 

Emergency Command Center during the Gibraltar Fire and commented on the 
excellent coordination of the many agencies involved. 

 - Councilmember White reported on his attendance at the recent Water Commission 
Meeting where they reviewed current drought conditions.  

 - Councilmember Hart commented on his attendance at the National League of 
Cities Conference where the topics of Technical Platforms and Vacation Rentals 
were discussed. 

 - Councilmember Murillo reported on her attendance at the Community Action 
Commission Board Meeting where they approved a new budget and a Women In 
Leadership Conference put on by the Santa Barbara County Commission of 
Women and Women’s Economic Ventures.   

 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

22. Subject:  Conference With City Attorney - Existing Litigation (160.03) 
Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (d)(1) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is Karen Fox, et al. 
v. City of Santa Barbara, et al., SBSC Case No. 1469026.  
 Scheduling:   Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
 Report:   None anticipated 
 
Documents: 
 November 10, 2015, report from the City Attorney. 
 
Time: 
 5:15 p.m. – 5:20 p.m.  
 
No report was made. 

 



11/10/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 11 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 5:15 p.m. to Monday, November 16, 2015, 
at 1:30 p.m. at 806 Alberta Avenue.  
EVENIN 

 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  DEBORAH L. APPLEGATE 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  
 



Agenda Item No.  2 
 

File Code No.  250.02  

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  November 24, 2015 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Accounting Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Fiscal Year 2016 First Quarter Review 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Accept the Fiscal Year 2016 interim financial statements for the three months 

ended September 30, 2015; and 
B. Approve the proposed first quarter adjustments to Fiscal Year 2016 

appropriations and estimated revenues as detailed in the Schedule of Proposed 
First Quarter Budget Adjustments. 

 
DISCUSSION:   
 
Each month, staff presents the interim financial statements (Attachment 1) showing the 
status of revenues and expenditures in relation to budget for each of the City’s Funds. 
The interim financial statements cover the first three months of the fiscal year. As such, 
it is premature to make any meaningful projections for the fiscal year. However, it 
appears that General Fund revenues and expenditures are currently in line with 
expectations at September 30, and tracking similar to previous years. 
 
In addition to the interim financial statements, staff brings forward recommended 
adjustments for City Council approval. These adjustments are the result of new 
information and/or unanticipated events that occurred since the adoption of the budget 
in June 2015.  A listing and description of each proposed adjustment to the current year 
budget is provided in Attachment 2. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Interim Financial Statements for the Three Months Ended 

September 30, 2015 
2. Schedule of Proposed First Quarter Budget Adjustments 

 
PREPARED BY: Jennifer Tomaszewski, Accounting Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director  
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



Attachment 2

City of Santa Barbara

Interim Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Proposed Budget Adjustments

Increase

Increase (Decrease) in Addition to

(Decrease) in Estimated (Use of)

Appropriations Revenues Reserves

GENERAL FUND (1000)

General Government

Transfer to Successor Agency Operating Fund - ROPS cash
 adjustment 16,491$                 (16,491)$            

The Successor Agency ROPS Cash Balances have had several 
adjustments made since th RDA dissolution process since Fiscal 
Year 2012. There were several adjustments made during the 
dissolution process, charges thought to be allowed, were 
subsequently denied by the state. As a result of all these 
adjustments, the cash was out of balance by $16,461. The state has 
asked that this be corrected. The recommended entries will correct 
this ongoing issue and align cash balance with the disallowed 
charges.

Community Development

Decrease Appropriations for City Council - Arts & Community 
Promotion (25,000)                 25,000               

Increase Appropriations for Community Development - Human 
Services 25,000                   (25,000)              

During Fiscal Year 2016 budget process, Legal Aid Foundation was 
awarded a General Fund Grant for $25,000 for the Common Ground 
Project. The funding was appropriated in the Arts & Community 
Promotion budget, however the funds are administered through the 
Community Development Department. These recommended entries 
align the appropriations with the expenditures.

Increase Estimated Revenues for Community Development - EIR Services 50,000               50,000               

Increase Appropriations for Community Development - EIR Services 50,000                   (50,000)              

Planning accepts deposits from developers to pay for planning 
services related to their projects. The expenditures associated with 
these services are paid from the Design Review budget. However 
revenues and appropriations were not budgeted for Fiscal Year 
2016.The recommended entries will create the budget and 
appropriations that should have been created with the budget 
process.

Parks

Increase Estimate Revenues for Parks Art and Craft Marketing 10,000               10,000               

Increase Appropriations for Parks Art and Craft Marketing 10,000                   (10,000)              

Parks Arts and Craft Show revenues have declined in relation to 
ongoing construction on Cabrillo Boulevard. The Arts and Crafts 
Advisory Committee approved a marketing fund funded by member 
fees, to be used for promotional activity. The recommended entries 
create the appropriation and the corresponding funding.

Total General Fund 76,491                   60,000               (16,491)              

1



Increase

Increase (Decrease) in Addition to

(Decrease) in Estimated (Use of)

Appropriations Revenues Reserves

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Streets Operating Fund (2400)

Decrease Appropriations for Maintenance and Replacement (6,783)                    6,783                 

During the budget process, a vehicle was incorrectly allocated to the 
Streets Fund when it should have been allocated to the Facilities 
Operating Fund.  The recommended entries align the appropriations 
with the actual costs for this vehicle.

Total Streets Operating Fund (6,783)$                 -$                   6,783$               

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS cont'd

County Library Fund (2500)

Increase Appropriations for the Goleta Library 21,000$                 (21,000)$            

Increase Donations Revenues for the Goleta Library 21,000               21,000               

In Fiscal Year 2016, the Goleta Library received additional 
Donations of $21,000 from the Friends of the Goleta Valley Library. 
These recommended entries increase the funding and 
appropriations allowing the department the ability to spend it.

Increase Appropriations for the Solvang Library 3,000                     (3,000)                

Increase Donations Revenues for the Solvang Library 3,000                 3,000                 

In Fiscal Year 2016, the Solvang Library received additional 
Donations of $3,000 from the Friends of the Santa Ynez Valley 
Library. These recommended entries increase the funding and 
appropriations allowing the department the ability to spend it.

Total County Library Fund 24,000                   24,000               -                     

Parks Grants Fund (2860)

Increase Estimated Donations Revenues to Summer Recreation Program 37,000               37,000               

Increase Appropriations for the Summer Recreation Program 37,000                   (37,000)              

Youth Activities Program manages free drop ins for children over the 
summer vacation period.  Staff has been successful in gaining 
additional grant funding of $37,000 to extend the program by two 
weeks.   The recommended entries will increase to appropriation 
and the corresponding funding to allow the department the ability to 
utilize the additional funding.

Total Parks Grants Fund 37,000                   37,000               -                     

2



Increase

Increase (Decrease) in Addition to

(Decrease) in Estimated (Use of)

Appropriations Revenues Reserves

CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND (3000)

Increase Estimate Revenues - Cargo Container Live Burn Training System 17,227               17,227               

Increase Appropriations - Cargo Container Live Burn Training System 17,227                   (17,227)              

The Cargo Container Live-Burn Training System scope of work has 
been increased to include the installation of a motorized gate at the 
entrance. Increased Donation Revenue has been identified to fund 
this increase in scope. The recommended entries will increase to 
appropriation and the corresponding funding.

Increase Appropriations - Fire Station 7 Remodel 27,000                   (27,000)              

Originally the Fire Station 7 Remodel Project was budgeted for 
$60,000 for the architectural design costs. Proposals received back, 
at $87,000, were higher than estimates. The recommended entries 
will provide the additional budget needed for the design costs for the 
project, from capital outlay reserves.

Total Capital Outlay Fund 44,227                   17,227               (27,000)              

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Airport Operating Fund (5700)

Transfer from Airport Grants Fund for Reimbursement of FAA Grant fees 4,800                 4,800                 

The Airport funds certain portions of FAA eligible projects up front. 
Airport Operating Fund funded the independent cost estimate which 
was required by the FAA prior to award of grant funds for the 
Wildlife Hazard Assessment and Management Plan.The 
recommended entries will reimburse the Airport Operating fund for 
the cost estimate paid before the grant was awarded.

Total Airport Operating Fund -$                       4,800$               4,800$               

Airport Grants Fund (5720)

Transfer to Airport Operating Fund for Reimbursement of FAA 
Grant fees 4,800$                   (4,800)$              

Decrease appropriations for Professional Services to increase "transfers to" buget (4,800)                    4,800                 

The Airport funds certain portions of FAA eligible projects up front. 
Airport Operating Fund funded the independent cost estimate which 
was required by the FAA prior to award of grant funds for the 
Wildlife Hazard Assessment and Management Plan.The 
recommended entries will reimburse the Airport Operating fund for 
the cost estimate paid before the grant was awarded.

Total Airport Grants Fund -                         -                     -                     

3



Increase

Increase (Decrease) in Addition to

(Decrease) in Estimated (Use of)

Appropriations Revenues Reserves

ENTERPRISE FUNDS cont'd

Water Operating Fund (5000)

Increase Estimated Revenues for the Pump Station Rehab Project 81,000               81,000               

Transfer to Water Capital Fund for the Pump Station Rehab Project 81,000                   (81,000)              

The City water main was damaged in a landslide in the early 1960’s, 
and all the affected property owners in the San Roque Canyon area 
signed an agreement to pay “their share” toward the cost of the 
permanent water project.  In 1984, Water Resources made an 
agreement with certain property owners over a permanent water 
main project to serve their properties.  Since then, one of the 
properties changed hands and the title company for the purchaser 
missed this agreement in the title search.  The title company paid 
the City $81,000, the estimated amount owed, which has been held 
as a deposit in the water fund. These recommended entries will 
provide the appropriation authority to use the funds and allocate the 
$81,000 the Cater Cross-Tie pump improvements project to better 
supply water to the San Roque Canyon area.

Total Water Operating Fund 81,000                   81,000               -                     

Water Capital Fund (5010)

Transfer from Water Operating Fund 81,000               81,000               

Increase Appropriations - The Pump Station Rehab Project 81,000                   (81,000)              

The City water main was damaged in a landslide in the early 1960’s, 
and all the affected property owners in the San Roque Canyon area 
signed an agreement to pay “their share” toward the cost of the 
permanent water project.  In 1984, Water Resources made an 
agreement with certain property owners over a permanent water 
main project to serve their properties.  Since then, one of the 
properties changed hands and the title company for the purchaser 
missed this agreement in the title search.  The title company paid 
the City $81,000, the estimated amount owed, which has been held 
as a deposit in the water fund. These recommended entries will 
provide the appropriation authority to use the funds and allocate the 
$81,000 the Cater Cross-Tie pump improvements project to better 
supply water to the San Roque Canyon area.

Total Water Capital Fund 81,000                   81,000               -                     

Wastewater Operating Fund (5100)

Transfer to Wastewater Capital Fund for Sanitary Sewer Overflow 
Compliance Project 900,000                 (900,000)            

A Project to line the large sewer mains along Cabrillo Blvd. is 
needed. Because it ties into the construction taking place on Cabrillo 
Boulevard / Cabrillo Bridge Project this project cannot be delayed. 
The recommended entries will transfer funding from Wastewater 
Operating Fund reserves to appropriate additional funds needed for 
the project.

Total Wastewater Operating Fund 900,000$               -$                   (900,000)$          

4



Increase

Increase (Decrease) in Addition to

(Decrease) in Estimated (Use of)

Appropriations Revenues Reserves

ENTERPRISE FUNDS cont'd

Wastewater Capital Fund (5110)

Transfer from Wastewater Operating Fund 900,000$           900,000$           

Increase Appropriations - Sanitary Sewer Overflow Compliance Project 900,000                 (900,000)            

A Project to line the large sewer mains along Cabrillo Blvd. is 
needed. Because it ties into the construction taking place on Cabrillo 
Boulevard / Cabrillo Bridge Project this project cannot be delayed. 
The recommended entries will transfer funding from Wastewater 
Operating Fund reserves to appropriate additional funds needed for 
the project.

Total Wastewater Capital Fund 900,000                 900,000             -                     

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Facilities Operating Fund (6300)

Increase Appropriations for Maintenance and Replacement 6,783                     (6,783)                

During the budget process, a vehicle was incorrectly allocated to the 
Streets Fund when it should have been allocated to the Facilities 
Operating Fund.  The recommended entries align the appropriations 
with the actual costs.

Total Facilities Operating Fund 6,783                     -                     (6,783)                

Facilities Capital Fund (6310)

Increase Appropriations for Police Department Locker
 Room Remodel 100,000                 (100,000)            

Decrease Appropriations for Public Works Fuel Island 
Concrete Project (100,000)               100,000             

The Police Department Locker Room Remodel project is budgeted 
for Fiscal Year 2017, but due to various circumstances, this project 
is now moving forward more quickly.  To accomplish this priority with 
budgeted revenues, the Public Works Fuel Island Concrete project 
will be delayed in order to fund the Locker Room Remodel. The 
recommended entries will allocate the funding between the two 
projects.

Total Facilities Capital Fund -                         -                     -                     

Fleet Replacement Fund (6410)

Increase Appropriations for Fleet Replacement-Fire Trucks 175,000                 (175,000)            

During the Fiscal Year 2016 budget process, it was determined the 
Fire Department required a new Type 6 Fire Engine apparatus to be 
purchased and placed into service.  The determination was too late 
to appropriate the funds, therefore it was decided to request the 
budget adjustment when the department was prepared to purchase 
the truck.  There are sufficient reserves in the Fleet Replacement 
Fund for this request. The recommended entries increase the 
appropriations to allow for the purchase.

Total Fleet Replacement Fund 175,000                 -                     (175,000)            

5



Increase

Increase (Decrease) in Addition to

(Decrease) in Estimated (Use of)

Appropriations Revenues Reserves

SUCCESSOR AGENCY FUND (7105)

Successor Agency Operating Fund

Transfer from General Fund Non Departmental to correct cash 
balance from ROPS adjustments 16,491               16,491               

The Successor Agency ROPS Cash Balances have had several 
adjustments made since th RDA dissolution process since Fiscal 
Year 2012. There were several adjustments made during the 
dissolution process, charges thought to be allowed, were 
subsequently denied by the state. As a result of all these 
adjustments, the cash was out of balance by $16,461. The state has 
asked that this be corrected. The recommended entries will correct 
this ongoing issue and align cash balance with the disallowed 
charges.

Total Successor Agency Operating Fund -$                       16,491$             16,491$             

6



Agenda Item No.  3 

File Code No.  260.02 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 24, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Treasury Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: October 2015 Investment Report 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council accept the October 2015 Investment Report. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The attached investment report includes Investment Activity, Interest Revenue, a 
Summary of Cash and Investments, and Investment Portfolio detail as of October 31, 
2015.   
 
 
ATTACHMENT: October 2015 Investment Report 
 
PREPARED BY: Julie Nemes, Treasury Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY INVESTMENT INCOME

PURCHASES OR DEPOSITS POOLED INVESTMENTS

 10/16 LAIF Deposit - City 5,000,000$         Interest Earned on Investments 145,315$              

10/29 Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 2,000,000           Amortization (11,508)

10/31 Cash/Pending Redemption 2,000,000           Total 133,808$              
Total 9,000,000$         

SALES, MATURITIES, CALLS OR WITHDRAWALS

 10/16 Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) - Call (4,000,000)$        

10/16 Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) - Call (4,000,000)          

10/26 Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) - Maturity (2,000,000)          

10/31 United States Treasury Note (USTN) - Maturity (2,000,000)          

Total (12,000,000)$      

ACTIVITY TOTAL (3,000,000)$        INCOME TOTAL 133,808$              

A
ttachm

ent
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Activity and Interest Report

October 31, 2015

1



ENDING BALANCE AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

 Yield to Percent Average
Book Maturity of Days to

Description Value  (365 days) Portfolio Maturity
 

MUFG Union Bank NA Checking Account 18,820,492$         0.400% 12.30% 1
State of California LAIF 34,000,000 0.337% 22.23% 1
Certificates of Deposit 9,000,000 1.412% 5.88% 771
Treasury Securities 8,075,652 0.487% 5.28% 277
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 66,001,175 1.365% 43.15% 920
Corporate/Medium Term Notes 12,008,123 1.911% 7.85% 429

147,905,442         1.005% 96.69% 508

SB Airport Promissory Note 5,061,003 4.195% 3.31% 5,021
Totals and Averages 152,966,445$       1.111% 100.00% 657

Total Cash and Investments 152,966,445$       
 

  
NET CASH AND INVESTMENT ACTIVITY FOR OCTOBER 2015 (7,599,074)$              
 

 
ENDING BALANCE AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2015

 Yield to Percent Average
Book Maturity of Days to

Description Value  (365 days) Portfolio Maturity
 

MUFG Union Bank NA Checking Account 14,232,925$         0.400% 9.93% 1 (1)

State of California LAIF 39,000,000 0.357% 27.20% 1 (2)

Certificates of Deposit 9,000,000 1.412% 6.28% 740
Treasury Securities 6,065,088 0.516% 4.23% 327
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 58,001,664 1.402% 40.46% 964
Corporate/Medium Term Notes 12,006,690 1.911% 8.37% 398

138,306,368         1.010% 96.47% 502

SB Airport Promissory Note 5,061,003 4.195% 3.53% 4,990
Totals and Averages 143,367,371$       1.123% 100.00% 660

Cash/Pending Treasury Security Redemption 2,000,000$           
Total Cash and Investments 145,367,371$       

  
Note: (1) Interest earnings allowance is provided at the rate of 0.400% by MUFG Union Bank, N.A. to help offset banking fees. 

  (2) The average life of the LAIF portfolio as of October 31, 2015 is 200 days.  

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Summary of Cash and Investments

October 31, 2015

2



 PURCHASE MATURITY STATED YIELD AT FACE BOOK MARKET BOOK  

DESCRIPTION DATE DATE MOODY'S S & P RATE 365 VALUE VALUE VAL UE GAIN/(LOSS) COMMENTS

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUNDS

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND - - - - 0.357 0.357 39,000,000.00 39,000,000.00 39,000,000.00 0.00  

     Subtotal, LAIF      39,000,000.00 39,000,000.00 39,000,000.00 0.00

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

ALLY BANK 09/24/15 09/25/17 - - 1.250 1.250 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,262.50 262.50 FDIC Certificate 57803

AMERICAN EXPRESS BANK FSB 10/23/14 10/23/19 - - 2.200 2.200 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,905.00 905.00 FDIC Certificate 35328

AMERICAN EXPRESS CENTURION BK 09/30/15 09/30/20 - - 2.250 2.250 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,230.00 230.00 FDIC Certificate 27471

BMO HARRIS BANK NA 09/30/15 09/29/17 - - 1.100 1.100 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,187.50 187.50 FDIC Certificate 16571

BMW BK NORTH AMERICA 09/30/15 09/30/20 - - 2.200 2.200 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,230.00 230.00 FDIC Certificate 35141

CAPITAL ONE BANK USA NA 10/29/14 10/29/19 - - 1.900 1.900 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,870.00 870.00 FDIC Certificate 33954

CAPITAL ONE NA 09/30/15 09/30/20 - - 2.250 2.250 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,230.00 230.00 FDIC Certificate 4297

DISCOVER BANK 09/30/15 09/30/20 - - 2.300 2.300 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,227.50 227.50 FDIC Certificate 5649

EVERBANK 09/30/15 09/29/17 - - 1.100 1.100 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,187.50 187.50 FDIC Certificate 34775

GE CAPITAL BANK 10/17/14 10/17/19 - - 2.000 2.000 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,857.50 857.50 FDIC Certificate 33778

GOLDMAN SACHS BANK USA 10/29/14 10/29/19 - - 2.150 2.150 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,865.00 865.00 FDIC Certificate 33124

KEY BANK NA 09/30/15 10/02/17 - - 1.150 1.150 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,212.50 212.50 FDIC Certificate 17534

MONTECITO BANK & TRUST 11/18/13 11/18/15 - - 0.600 0.600 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00  

UNION BANK 08/31/12 08/31/17 - - 1.490 1.511 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 0.00  

     Subtotal, Certificates of deposit     9,000,000.00 9,000,000.00 9,005,265.00 5,265.00

TREASURY SECURITIES - COUPON

U S TREASURY NOTE 02/22/13 05/15/16 Aaa AA+ 5.125 0.442 2,000,000.00 2,049,863.12 2,051,060.00 1,196.88  

U S TREASURY NOTE 02/22/13 08/31/16 Aaa AA+ 1.000 0.502 2,000,000.00 2,008,199.84 2,009,400.00 1,200.16  

U S TREASURY NOTE 02/22/13 02/28/17 Aaa AA+ 0.875 0.607 2,000,000.00 2,007,025.39 2,008,460.00 1,434.61  

     Subtotal, Treasury Securities 6,000,000.00 6,065,088.35 6,068,920.00 3,831.65

FEDERAL AGENCY ISSUES - COUPON  
FED AGRICULTURAL MTG CORP 10/03/13 10/03/18 - - 1.720 1.720 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,019,860.00 19,860.00  

FED AGRICULTURAL MTG CORP 12/12/13 12/12/18 - - 1.705 1.705 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,031,860.00 31,860.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 01/22/15 01/22/19 Aaa AA+ 1.480 1.480 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,003,800.00 3,800.00 Callable 01/22/16, then continuous

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 09/18/13 09/18/17 Aaa AA+ 1.550 1.550 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,024,760.00 24,760.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 12/16/14 12/16/19 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,001,660.00 1,660.00 Callable 12/16/15, then continuous

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 02/11/15 02/11/19 Aaa AA+ 1.520 1.520 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,003,480.00 3,480.00 Callable 02/11/16, then continuous

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 02/16/11 02/16/16 Aaa AA+ 2.570 2.570 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,013,640.00 13,640.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 07/17/13 07/17/17 Aaa AA+ 1.300 1.300 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,017,040.00 17,040.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 06/24/15 06/24/19 Aaa AA+ 1.520 1.520 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,011,840.00 11,840.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 09/13/13 09/14/18 Aaa AA+ 2.000 1.910 2,000,000.00 2,004,898.29 2,051,860.00 46,961.71  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 01/17/14 04/17/18 Aaa AA+ 1.480 1.480 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,020,280.00 20,280.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 06/29/15 06/29/18 Aaa AA+ 1.170 1.170 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,004,760.00 4,760.00 Callable 06/29/16, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 12/16/13 12/14/18 Aaa AA+ 1.750 1.650 2,000,000.00 2,005,958.52 2,036,000.00 30,041.48  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 06/18/14 06/09/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.003 2,000,000.00 1,999,892.06 2,009,020.00 9,127.94  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 10/22/14 11/18/16 Aaa AA+ 0.750 0.500 2,000,000.00 2,005,195.12 2,003,380.00 (1,815.12)  

QUALITY RATING

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Investment Portfolio

October 31, 2015

3



 PURCHASE MATURITY STATED YIELD AT FACE BOOK MARKET BOOK  

DESCRIPTION DATE DATE MOODY'S S & P RATE 365 VALUE VALUE VAL UE GAIN/(LOSS) COMMENTS

QUALITY RATING

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Investment Portfolio

October 31, 2015

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 08/24/15 08/24/20 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,012,140.00 12,140.00 Callable 08/24/16, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 11/20/13 09/29/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.030 1,000,000.00 999,435.33 1,003,260.00 3,824.67  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 01/30/13 01/30/18 Aaa AA+ 1.030 1.030 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,006,090.00 6,090.00 Callable 01/30/16, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/12/12 12/12/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,001,620.00 1,620.00 Callable 12/12/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/15/13 10/26/17 Aaa AA+ 0.875 1.062 2,000,000.00 1,992,744.33 2,002,920.00 10,175.67  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/11/13 11/27/18 Aaa AA+ 1.625 1.606 2,000,000.00 2,001,114.67 2,031,980.00 30,865.33  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/08/12 11/08/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,200.00 200.00 Callable 11/08/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/08/12 11/08/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,200.00 200.00 Callable 11/08/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/26/12 12/26/17 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 4,003,520.00 3,520.00 Callable 12/26/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 10/29/15 10/29/20 Aaa AA+ 1.500 1.766 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,994,700.00 (5,300.00) SU 1.5%-3% Call 04/29/16, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 02/05/13 02/05/18 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,993,940.00 (6,060.00) Callable 11/05/15, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/20/13 10/26/17 Aaa AA+ 0.875 1.070 2,000,000.00 1,992,425.85 2,002,920.00 10,494.15  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 06/30/15 06/30/20 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,012,360.00 12,360.00 Callable 06/30/16, then qtrly

     Subtotal, Federal Agencies 58,000,000.00 58,001,664.17 58,319,090.00 317,425.83
 

CORPORATE/MEDIUM TERM NOTES

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY FIN 12/15/10 12/15/15 Aa2 AA 2.450 2.530 2,000,000.00 1,999,816.67 2,005,160.00 5,343.33  

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY INC 11/29/13 02/09/18 Aa2 AA 1.550 1.550 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,016,600.00 16,600.00  

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORP 11/10/10 11/09/15 A1 AA+ 2.250 2.250 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,580.00 580.00  

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORP 01/14/14 01/14/19 A1 AA+ 2.300 2.250 2,000,000.00 2,003,010.61 2,033,880.00 30,869.39  

PROCTOR & GAMBLE 09/20/11 11/15/15 Aa3 AA- 1.800 1.085 2,000,000.00 2,000,542.21 2,000,960.00 417.79  

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT 09/26/11 09/15/16 Aa3 AA- 2.000 1.800 2,000,000.00 2,003,320.78 2,024,080.00 20,759.22  

     Subtotal, Corporate Securities 12,000,000.00 12,006,690.27 12,081,260.00 74,569.73

SB AIRPORT PROMISSORY NOTE (LT)

SANTA BARBARA AIRPORT 07/14/09 06/30/29 - - 3.500 4.195 5,061,002.86 5,061,002.86 5,061,002.86 0.00  

     Subtotal, SBA Note 5,061,002.86 5,061,002.86 5,061,002.86 0.00

CHECKING ACCOUNT

MUFG UNION BANK NA CHKNG ACCNT - - - - 0.400 0.400 14,232,925.32 14,232,925.32 14,232,925.32 0.00

     Subtotal, Checking Account 14,232,925.32 14,232,925.32 14,232,925.32 0.00

CASH/PENDING REDEMPTION

U S TREASURY NOTE 10/25/12 10/31/15 Aaa AA+ 1.250 0.397 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00

     Subtotal, Cash/Pending Redemption 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00

TOTALS 145,293,928.18 145,367,370.97 145,768,463.18 401,092.21

Market values have been obtained from the City's safekeeping agent, MUFG Union Bank NA - The Private Bank (UBTPB). UBTPB uses Interactive Data Pricing Service, Bloomberg and DTC.

4



Agenda Item No.  4 
 

File Code No.  330.03 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 24, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval Of Final Map And Execution Of Agreements For 210 Meigs 

Road And Acceptance Of Adjacent Easement At Washington School 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Approve and authorize the City Administrator to execute and record Final Map 

Number 20,815 and standard agreements relating to the approved subdivision at 
210 Meigs Road, and authorize the City Engineer to record, upon completion of 
any required public improvements, a recital document stating that the public 
improvements have been completed and that the previously recorded Land 
Development Agreement may be removed from the title document; and  

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Accepting a New Water and Sewer Easement on Santa Barbara Unified 
School District Property, known as Washingon Elementary School, Located at 
290 Lighthouse Road.  

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
A Tentative Map for the subdivision located at 210 Meigs Road (Attachment 1), was 
conditionally approved on March 5, 2009, by adoption of the Planning Commission (PC) 
Conditions of Approval, Resolution Number 007-09, (Attachment 2).  The project 
involves the subdivision of Parcel One into five single-family residential lots and a new 
City street to be name Lighthouse Way. Staff has reviewed the Final Map and has found 
it to be in substantial compliance with the previously approved Tentative Map, the 
Conditions of Approval, the State Subdivision Map Act, and the City’s Subdivision 
Ordinance. 
 

In accordance with the PC approval, the Owner(s) (Attachment 3) have signed and 
submitted the Map and the required Agreements to the City, tracked under Public 
Works Permit Number PBW2015-00553.  Council approval is required if Council agrees 
with the staff determination that the Map conforms to all the requirements of the 
Subdivision Map Act and the Municipal Code applicable at the time of the approval of 
the Tentative Map (Municipal Code, Chapter 27.09.060, City Council Action). 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of Final Map And Execution Of Agreements For 210 Meigs Road And 
Acceptance Of Adjacent Easement at Washington School 
November 24, 2015 
Page 2 

 

 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the City Administrator to execute the required 
Agreement Relating to Subdivision Map Conditions Imposed on Real Property and the 
Agreement for Land Development Improvements.  
 
The Agreement Assigning Water Extraction Rights does not require Council approval, 
and will be  signed by the Public Works Director in accordance with City Council 
Resolution Number 02-131. 
 
In accordance with the Planning Commission conditions of approval, the public 
improvements include curb extensions on the southeast and southwest corners of the 
Meigs Road and Elise Way intersection.  The curb extensions are to shorten the 
crossing distance and improve pedestrian visibility at the Washington Elementary 
School crosswalk across Meigs Road, and will be buffered from the vehicle travel lanes 
by approximately 6 feet. 
 
THE FINAL MAP, AGREEMENTS, AND EASEMENT DEED ARE AVAILABLE FOR 
REVIEW IN THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 1. Vicinity Map 

2. Conditions required to be recorded concurrent with Final Map 
Number 20,815 by the Planning Commission Conditions of 
Approval Resolution Number 007-09 

3. List of Owners 
 

 
PREPARED BY: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/MW/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



o
.

CD

-o

C
) m —
1

z

IT
I

m

0



ATTACHMENT 2 

1  

 
CONDITIONS REQUIRED TO BE RECORDED CONCURRENT WITH FINAL MAP 
NUMBER 20,815 BY PLANNING COMMISSION CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL, 
RESOLUTION NO. 007-09 
 

210 Meigs Road 
 

Said approval is subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Approved Development.  The development of the Real Property approved by the 

Planning Commission on March 5, 2009, is limited to the lot line adjustment and the 
five lot residential subdivision and associated improvements, including a new public 
street with sidewalk and parkway, shown on the tentative map and approved project 
plans signed by the chairman of the Planning Commission on said date and on file 
at the City of Santa Barbara.  

 
2. Future Residential Units.  Any subdivision or other residential development of 

Adjusted Parcel 1 shall be subject to the review and approval of the Single-Family 
Design Board (SFBD) and shall incorporate the design review criteria specified in 
the Design Review section of the conditions of approval contained within the 
Resolution approving the subject project (MST2006-00476) in order to reduce 
nuisance noise to future residents and direct views away from the school. 

 
3. Passive Drainage Techniques - Residential Subdivision.  On each lot of the 

subdivision, passive/natural water treatment design techniques such as bioswales, 
infiltration basins, etc, shall be incorporated into open space areas, groundcover, 
and courtyards to treat the small, frequent storm events that impact water quality in 
Santa Barbara (a 1 inch storm event, over a 24-hour period).  These types of 
passive/natural capture and filtration design options shall be implemented as 
opposed to mechanical/underground options, which pose maintenance problems 
and often times, do not treat runoff as efficiently.  These measures shall be 
incorporated into the drainage plan and shall be subject to review and approval by 
City Building Division and Public Works Department per City regulations prior to 
issuance of any building or public works permits (Mitigation Measure W-6). 

 
4. Uninterrupted Water Flow.  The Owner shall provide for the uninterrupted flow of 

water onto the Real Property including, but not limited to, swales, natural 
watercourses, conduits and any access road, as appropriate. 

 
5. Recreational Vehicle Storage Limitation.  No recreational vehicles, boats, or 

trailers shall be stored on the Real Property unless enclosed or concealed from view 
as approved by the Single Family Design Board (SFDB).  

 
6. Landscape Plan Compliance.  The Owner(s) shall comply with the Landscape Plan 

approved by the Single Family Design Board (SFDB).  Such plan shall not be 
modified unless prior written approval is obtained from the SFDB.  The landscaping 
on the Real Property shall be provided and maintained in accordance with said 
landscape plan.  If said landscaping is removed for any reason without approval by 
the SFDB, the owner is responsible for its immediate replacement.  The following 
tree protection measures shall be incorporated: 



2 

  Tree Protection.  The existing tree(s) shown on the Tree Removal Plan as to remain 
shall be preserved, protected, and maintained in accordance with the 
recommendations contained in the arborist’s report prepared by Bill Spiewak, dated 
August 21, 2007.  A copy of this report shall be attached to the recorded conditions 
as an exhibit.  Additionally, the following provisions shall apply to any oak trees to 
remain on the property: 

 
a. No irrigation systems shall be installed within three feet of the drip line of any oak 

tree. 
b. The use of herbicides or fertilizer shall be prohibited within the drip line of any 

oak tree. 
 
7. Storm Water Pollution Control and Drainage Systems Maintenance.  Owner(s) 

shall maintain any drainage system and storm water pollution control devices 
intended to intercept siltation and other potential pollutants (including, but not limited 
to, hydrocarbons, fecal bacteria, herbicides, fertilizers, etc.) in a functioning state 
(and, if applicable, in accordance with the Operations and Maintenance Procedure 
Plan prepared in accordance with the Storm Water Management Plan BMP 
Guidance Manual).  Should any of the project’s surface or subsurface drainage 
structures or storm water pollution control methods fail to capture, infiltrate, and/or 
treat water, or result in increased erosion, the Owner shall be responsible for any 
necessary repairs to the system and restoration of the eroded area.  Should repairs 
or restoration become necessary, prior to thecommencement of such repair or 
restoration work, the applicant shall submit a repair and restoration plan to the 
Community Development Director to determine if an amendment or a new Building 
Permit and Coastal Development Permit is required to authorize such work.  The 
Owner is responsible for the adequacy of any project-related drainage facilities and 
for the continued maintenance thereof in a manner that will preclude any hazard to 
life, health, or damage to the Real Property or any adjoining property. 

 
8. Disclosure of School Activities.  Future owners of each residential lot shall be 

made aware of the fact that Washington Elementary School is on the adjacent 
property and that various indoor and outdoor activities occur on said property, 
including, but not limited to outdoor play, organized games, and special events.  
Future school expansion projects should also be disclosed.  The language of the 
disclosure shall be provided to the Washington School Principal and shall be 
approved by the School District prior to recordation of the final map for the 
subdivision.  Future owners and tenants shall be required to review and 
acknowledge acceptance of such disclosure.  Acknowledgement shall be notarized 
prior to close of escrow for future owners and as part of rental agreements for 
tenants. 
 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

 
 

210 Meigs Road 
 
 

Lighthouse Builders, a California limited liability company 
 

By the managing member, RJ Builders, LLC, a California limited liability 
company 

 
LIST OF OWNERS 

 
Richard Ridgeway, Managing Member 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _____  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA ACCEPTING A NEW WATER AND SEWER EASEMENT 
ON SANTA BARBARA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROPERTY, 
KNOWN AS WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, LOCATED 
AT 290 LIGHTHOUSE ROAD. 

 
WHEREAS, The Owner of the real property, located at 290 Lighthouse Road, has 
offered to the City of Santa Barbara a portion of the land to be accepted as a water 
and sewer easement; 
 
WHEREAS, The Council of the City of Santa Barbara, by this resolution, hereby 
declares its intention to accept the offer of an easement on the property known as 
290 Lighthouse Road; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara claims no interest in the underlying fee 
ownership of the subject property. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1: The Council of the City of Santa Barbara adopts this Resolution 
accepting the offer of a water and sewer easement on the Real Property described 
in the Easement Deed dated July 10, 2015, from The Santa Barbara Unified 
School District to the City of Santa Barbara; 
 
Section 2:  The Council of the City of Santa Barbara authorizes the Public Works 
Director to record the offered Easement Deed. 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  5 
 

File Code No.  540.13 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  November 24, 2015 
 
TO:    Mayor and Council members 
 
FROM:   Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Purchase Order For The Maintenance And Repair  

Of The El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant Digester No. 1 Lining 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A.   Find that it is in the best interest of the City to waive formal bidding requirements 

section 4.52.070(L) of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code; and 
B.   Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a Purchase Order with Olympos 

Painting, Inc., in the amount of $191,000 for maintenance and repair of the El 
Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant Digester No. 1, and authorize the Public 
Works Director to approve expenditures up to $19,100 to cover any cost 
increases that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work.  
 

DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
On June 10, 2014, Council approved a Construction Contract to clean two digester 
tanks and replace related appurtenances at the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant. 
 
The cleaning of Digester No. 2 started in September 2014, and included the 
replacement of the valves and piping. When the Digester No. 2 tank was emptied in 
November 2014, an inspection revealed that the lining was compromised and would 
need to be replaced. This was not a part of the original scope of work for this tank as 
the lining was projected to last another 10 years.  
 
Therefore, since the cleaning contractor did not perform lining work, the City bid the 
Digester No. 2 lining work separately, and entered into a contract with Olympos 
Painting, Inc., (Olympos) in January 2015. The lining of Digester No. 2 was completed 
in May 2015, and the tank was placed back into service.  
 
The cleaning contract continued with work on Digester No. 1, and in August 2015, the 
tank was taken out of service and emptied. An inspection of the empty Digester No. 1 



Council Agenda Report 
Purchase Order For The Maintenance And Repair Of The El Estero Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Digester No. 1 Lining 
November 24, 2015 
Page 2 

Rev. 031214 Sect. 1b 

tank revealed the need for lining repairs on this digester as well, similar to the work 
performed on Digester No. 2. 
 
Project Description 
 
The maintenance and repair work now proposed for Digester No. 1 includes repairing 
the existing joint seals located inside the tank between the roof and the walls, restoring 
the de-laminated concrete on the roof and on the existing roof access manway, sealing 
exposed bolt holes, and lining the tank.  
 
Due to the fact that Olympos is familiar with the City’s digesters’ intricate operational 
and maintenance requirements because of their prior lining work on Digester No. 2, 
which was completed on-time and under budget, staff is recommending that it is in the 
best interest of the City to waive formal bidding requirement and enter into a purchase 
order with Olympos. They are a locally certified painting services contractor who can 
provide the City with a quick response time for maintenance (see attached quote). Their 
proposed quote is comparable to their former Digester No. 2 lining contract, which was 
competitively bid. 
 
Additionally, because of the lengthy process and expense of taking a digester out of 
service and preparing it for repairs, staff is recommending that the repairs and lining 
work on Digester No. 1 be completed immediately, while the tank is empty, and before 
the winter season begins. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
There are sufficient appropriated funds in the Wastewater Capital Fund to cover the 
cost of this project. The following summarizes project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 

Olympos Agreement   $191,000

Extra Services $19,100

Project Management (by City Staff) $25,000

TOTAL PROJECT COST $235,100
 
At its meeting on November 9, 2015, the Board of Water Commissioners voted in 
support of Staff’s recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY:     Linda Sumansky, Principal Civil Engineer/AF/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  6 
 

File Code No. 530.04 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: November 24, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department  
 
SUBJECT: Increase In Construction Change Order Authority For Cabrillo 

Boulevard Bridge Replacement/Anacapa Street Crosswalk 
Enhancement 

 
RECOMMENDATION: That Council: 
 
A. Accept Highway Safety Improvement Program grant funding increase in the 

amount of $270,000 for a revised total amount of $763,500 for the Cabrillo 
Boulevard at Anacapa Street Crosswalk Enhancement Project; 

B. Authorize an increase in appropriations and estimated revenues related to the 
Highway Safety Improvement Program grant funding by $270,000 in the Fiscal 
Year 2016 Streets Grant Fund to cover a portion of the cost of construction for 
the Cabrillo Boulevard at Anacapa Street Crosswalk Enhancement Project; 

C. Approve the transfer of $180,000 in available appropriations from the Streets 
Capital Fund to the Streets Grant Fund for the City’s share of the construction 
cost for the Cabrillo Boulevard at Anacapa Street Crosswalk Enhancement 
Project; and 

D. Authorize an increase in the Public Works Director’s Change Order Authority to 
approve expenditures for extra work for the Cabrillo Boulevard at Anacapa Street 
Crosswalk Enhancement Project, Contract No. 24,977, in the amount of 
$430,512.50, for a total contract expenditure authority of $15,818,578.00; 

E. Authorize an increase in the extra services amount with Bengal Engineering, 
Incorporated, for design support services during construction for the Cabrillo 
Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project, Contract No. 24,979, in the amount of 
$43,122.50, for a total contract expenditure authority of $292,624.50. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Project Background And Description 
 
The City of Santa Barbara was awarded a $493,500 grant from the Highway Safety 
Improvement Program (HSIP) for pedestrian crosswalk enhancements at five 
intersections in Santa Barbara for the HSIP Pedestrian Crosswalk Enhancements 
Project. The intersections include 1) Cabrillo Boulevard at Corona Del Mar, 2) State 



Council Agenda Report 
Increase In Construction Change Order Authority For Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge 
Replacement/Anacapa Street Crosswalk Enhancement 
November 24, 2015 
Page 2 

 

Street at Calle Palo Colorado, 3) State Street at Islay Street, 4) State Street at 
Pedregosa Street, and 5) Cabrillo Boulevard at Anacapa Street Crosswalk 
Enhancement Project (Project), which are illustrated on Attachment 1. The need for the 
improvements was identified through routine traffic safety analyses. 
 
On September 15, 2015, City Council awarded the construction contract for the first four 
locations. The fifth location, Cabrillo Boulevard at Anacapa Street, is recommended to 
be awarded separately so that construction can be better coordinated with the Cabrillo 
Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project (Bridge Project). The primary reason for this is 
to coordinate the traffic handling plan and detours for pedestrians during Stage 2 
(mountain side) and Stage 3 (ocean side) of the Bridge Project. In addition, since the 
contractor is already mobilized, the overall construction cost should be less, and surface 
improvements can be coordinated such that it appears to be one project. Caltrans staff 
has approved this approach. 
 
The Project will include curb extensions, pedestrian activated flashers, improved 
intersection lighting on south side of Cabrillo Boulevard, and a widened sidewalk area 
adjacent to the tour bus loading zone. See Attachment 2 for an illustration of the 
planned Project. A median refuge island was originally proposed for this Project, but 
was removed after concerns were raised by the Fire Department and the Historic 
Landmarks Commission. 
 
The curb extension on the south side improves sight lines and allows for more on-street 
parking. Without the curb extension, parking would have to be kept further away from 
the crossing point to maintain good sight lines. The north side curb extension is planned 
due to the existing sidewalk width of only four-feet in front of the Fish House restaurant. 
The only way to provide sufficient sidewalk width is to eliminate the westbound right turn 
lane to Anacapa Street. The westbound right turn movement is generally a low volume 
movement. 
 
Current Status 
 
On October 30, 2015, a change order proposal in the amount of $453,035 was received 
from Lash Construction, Inc., (Lash) for the subject work. Since the proposal was higher 
than the engineer’s estimate, staff negotiated the price with the contractor. A revised 
proposal of $391,375, submitted by Lash on November 9, 2015, is an acceptable bid 
that is responsive to and meets the requirements of the Project specifications. Staff 
recommends authorizing the execution of a change order to the Bridge Project contract 
since the proposed change order amount is reasonable and it is in the public’s best 
interest to proceed with the work.  
 
In addition, staff recommends a change order funding recommendation of $39,137.50, 
or 10 percent, as is typical for this type of work and size of project.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Increase In Construction Change Order Authority For Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge 
Replacement/Anacapa Street Crosswalk Enhancement 
November 24, 2015 
Page 3 

 

The subject work is not anticipated to materially delay the Bridge Project, with the 
mountain sidewalk being completed during Stage 2 this winter, and the ocean sidewalk 
being completed during Stage 3 in winter 2016-2017. 
 
In addition, Caltrans has notified City staff that an increase in the HSIP grant in the 
amount of $270,000 has been approved for a total grant amount of $763,500. This 
results in the total construction contract cost for the HSIP project being approximately 
85 percent funded by the grant. 
 
The recommended increase in design support services with Bengal Engineering, 
Incorporated, (Bengal) on the Bridge Project is needed in order to modify the 
engineering design of the Stage 3 (ocean side) part of the new bridge. The modification 
to the bridge includes accommodating a newly identified earthquake requirement, per 
Caltrans, for the high-pressure gasoline hanging from the bridge. The increase in extra 
services will cover the cost of updating the bridge plans and reimbursing Bengal for 
costs associated with modifications made to the potable water main plan so that the gas 
main could be accommodated.  
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Funding  
 
This Project is primarily funded by a HSIP grant, with the balance from the Streets 
Capital Fund. The grant share for construction of the overall HSIP project is $763,500, 
of which $270,000 is recommended to be appropriated with this Council Agenda Report. 
An additional $180,000 for construction costs will come from a transfer of available 
appropriations in the Streets Capital Fund and from funds already appropriated for the 
HSIP project. 
 
The following summarizes the additional expenditures recommended in this report: 
 

 
CABRILLO BOULEVARD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 

 

 Base Contract Change Order Total 

Initial Contract Amount $13,989,150.50 $1,398,915.00 $15,388,065.50

Proposed Increase $391,375.00 $39,137.50 $430,512.50

Totals $14,380,525.50 $1,438,052.50 $15,818,578.00

 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Increase In Construction Change Order Authority For Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge 
Replacement/Anacapa Street Crosswalk Enhancement 
November 24, 2015 
Page 4 

 

 
 
CABRILLO BOULEVARD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT DESIGN SUPPORT SERVICES 

CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 Base Contract Change Order Total 

Initial Contract Amount $226,820.00 $22,682.00 $249,502.00

Proposed Increase $0.00 $43,122.50 $43,122.50

Total $226,820.00 $65,804.50 $292,624.50

 
 
The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs. 
 

HSIP PEDESTRIAN CROSSWALK ENHANCEMENT 
ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 

 

*Cents have been rounded to the nearest dollar in this table.   

 

 FHWA Share City Share Total Cost

Design (by City Staff) $0 $125,970 $125,970

City-Supplied Equipment $0 $34,910 $34,910

 $0 $160,880 $160,880

Construction Contract (4 Locations) $398,220 $44,247 $442,467

Construction Change Order Allowance (4 

Locations) 
$0 $44,250 $44,250

Construction Contract (Cabrillo / Anacapa) $352,237 39,138 $391,375

Construction Change Order Allowance 

(Cabrillo / Anacapa)
$13,043 26,094 $39,137

Contract Subtotal $763,500 $153,729 $917,229

Construction Management/Inspection (by 

City Staff and Contract) 
$0 $93,463 $93,463

Other City Staff Costs (Survey, Record 

Drawings, etc.) 
$0 $10,000 $10,000

Subtotal $0 $103,463 $103,463

  $763,500 $257,192 $1,020,692

Project Total $763,500 $418,072 *$1,181,572



Council Agenda Report 
Increase In Construction Change Order Authority For Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge 
Replacement/Anacapa Street Crosswalk Enhancement 
November 24, 2015 
Page 5 

 

 
There are sufficient appropriated funds in the Streets Capital Fund to cover the extra 
work items.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  1) Project Location Map 
 2) Project Layout 
 
PREPARED BY: Brian D’Amour, Principal Civil Engineer/AH/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator’s Office 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 1

sking
Rectangle

gpeirce
Typewritten Text

gpeirce
Typewritten Text



SCALE: 1"=10'

D
R

A
F

T

3
0

 
%

3
0

 
%

H
S

I
P

 
C

R
O

S
S

W
A

L
K

 
E

N
H

A
N

C
E

M
E

N
T

S
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

E
.
 
C

A
B

R
I
L
L
O

 
B

L
V

D
.

A
T

 
A

N
A

C
A

P
A

 
S

T
.

2014-0015

3681

C-1-4713

3 5

C4

Know what's

R

ARE APPROXIMATE

PROPERTY LINES

ATTACHMENT 2



Agenda Item No.  7 
 

File Code No.  540.01 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: November 24, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rate Modeling Services  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 
Services contract with Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc., in the amount of $50,221 for 
development of proposed water rates for Fiscal Year 2017, and authorize the Public 
Works Director to approve expenditures of up to $12,555 for extra services that may 
result from necessary changes in the scope of work, for a total not-to-exceed amount of 
$62,776. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Staff has received a proposal from Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc., (Raftelis) to 
complete the modeling and analysis necessary to develop proposed Fiscal Year 2017 
water rates. Due to the uncertainty of continued drought conditions, several scenarios of 
water rates will be developed that account for various water supply and demand 
conditions. The actual water rate scenario to be recommended for implementation will 
be determined in the February-March 2016 time frame, when more information will be 
known about the impacts of this winter’s rainfall on our water supplies. 
 
The City of Santa Barbara (City) is currently in a Stage Three Drought Emergency 
Condition, requiring a 25 percent reduction in overall water demands. Current water 
rates, which went into effect on July 2015, account for increased costs associated with 
responding to the drought, as well as a 25 percent demand reduction. Since June 2015, 
the community has cumulatively reduced water usage by 35 percent, exceeding the 25 
percent conservation goal. While this extraordinary conservation has a beneficial effect 
on water supply planning, it will result in a loss of revenue beyond what can be 
recovered under the current rate structure. The City’s water fund reserves can 
temporarily absorb some of the losses but ultimately rates will need to be adjusted to 
stabilize the financial situation.  
 
The City is a champion in water conservation and, in compliance with California Urban 
Water Conservation Council policies, has designed its water rates to incentivize 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rate Modeling Services 
November 24, 2015 
Page 2 

 

conservation, with 70 percent or more of revenue coming from volumetric rates that vary 
based on water use. This can be challenging to manage, given that the majority of the 
water system costs are fixed and are independent of water use. If water demands 
continue to be low and negatively impact revenues from volumetric rates, the City will 
be at risk of not meeting fixed financial obligations (e.g., debt service, required 
maintenance, etc.). 
 
Given the uncertainty of whether the current level of water demands will continue, and 
the possibility of an increased conservation target for next year, the proposed water rate 
scenarios for Fiscal Year 2017 will consider a conservation range of 25 to 50 percent. A 
temporary fee will be considered in the water rate design that stabilizes revenue under 
various levels of demand reduction. This temporary fee is intended to address revenue 
loss that occurs when community conservation exceeds the conservation target and 
would be removed once water usage stabilized and the annually adopted rates were 
sufficient to cover the cost of service.      
 
While the prospects of rain have improved this year, it is prudent to plan for a range of 
weather conditions. Therefore, the water rate scenarios will evaluate both 1) the size of 
the Charles E. Meyer Desalination Plant (Plant) as currently approved and under 
construction, and 2) a potential expansion, should drought conditions persist. A decision 
on a potential expansion of the Plant is not expected until spring 2016, after the majority 
of the rainy season is over. The water rate model will also anticipate potential  revenue 
from the Montecito Water District (MWD), should the City and the MWD enter into a 
cost-sharing agreement in which the City would provide water to MWD. Negotiations for 
such an agreement between the City and the MWD are underway and anticipated to be 
complete in January 2016. 
 
Any adjustment to the water rates must be made in compliance with Proposition 218 
requirements, known as the Right to Vote on Taxes Act. It includes the requirement that 
the rates may not exceed the estimated cost of providing the service, and it must be 
reasonable, fair, equitable, and proportional. Raftelis is a well-known financial expert for 
water rate consulting services. Raftelis has developed the City’s water rate model in 
support of the 2013 Water Rates Study, as well as our water rates in response to the 
drought for Fiscal Years 2015 and 2016, in compliance with the requirements of 
California’s Proposition 218, approved by voters in 1996.   
 
Staff has received a proposal from Raftelis to complete the modeling and analysis 
necessary to develop recommended rate structure scenarios for various water supply 
and demand conditions.  This will build on the water rate model developed by Raftelis 
under previous contracts. The scope of services includes a revised Water Fund 
Financial Plan, with particular attention to water rates for Fiscal Years 2017 and 2018.   
 
Two scenarios will be evaluated for Desalination Plant costs: 1) the current Plant 
capacity under construction, and 2) possible expansion of the Plant up to 7500 acre feet 
per year. For each cost scenario, various levels of water usage demand reductions will 
be evaluated to determine necessary fees for stabilizing the Water Fund reserves at 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Fiscal Year 2017 Water Rate Modeling Services 
November 24, 2015 
Page 3 

 

policy levels.  The final work will be documented in a report that explains the approach 
and methodology behind the rates.     
 
Initial work to develop proposed rates will be completed in time to allow rate noticing 
under Proposition 218 should the Council deem it necessary to move forward with 
financing an expansion of the Desalination Plant and to meet the timeline for the rates 
to become effective for Fiscal Year 2017.  An extra services authorization equal to 25 
percent of base costs is recommended in this case, due to the evolving nature of the 
water supply and demand conditions, and the need to promptly address unanticipated 
issues that may arise.  
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
There are sufficient appropriated funds in the Fiscal Year 2016 Water Fund budget for the 
proposed financing and rate model study services.  The Water Commissioners heard this 
item at its November 9, 2015 meeting and the Board voted 5-0-0 to approve these 
services. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Water Resources Manager/KD/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  8 

File Code No.  120.09 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 24, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Cancellation Of Certain Council Meetings In 2016 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council cancel the regular Council Meetings on the following dates:  January 5, 
January 19, February 16, April 5, May 31, July 5, August 16, August 23, August 30, 
November 29, December 20, and December 27, 2016. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Each year we review the calendar for the regular City Council Meeting dates.   
 
The Council meeting schedule has been established based on cancelling the Council 
meetings on the Tuesdays following a holiday and providing for a summer break.  
Council canceled these same Council meetings in 2015.   
 
We are now proposing the cancellation of meetings for the next year. 
 
Using this criteria, the following meetings would be cancelled: 
  

 Tuesday, January 5, 2016 (Tuesday after New Year’s Day) 
 Tuesday, January 19, 2016 (Tuesday after Martin Luther King, Jr. Holiday); 
 Tuesday, February 16, 2016 (Tuesday after Presidents Day Holiday); 
 Tuesday, April 5, 2016 (Tuesday after Cesar Chavez Day Holiday); 
 Tuesday, May 31, 2016 (Tuesday after Memorial Day Holiday); 
 Tuesday, July 5, 2016 (Tuesday after 4th of July Holiday); 
 Tuesday, August 16, 2016 (Summer Break); 
 Tuesday, August 23, 2016 (Summer Break); 
 Tuesday, August 30, 2016 (Summer Break);  
 Tuesday, November 29, 2016 (Tuesday after Thanksgiving Holiday);  
 Tuesday, December 20, 2016 (Winter Break); and 
 Tuesday, December 27, 2016 (Christmas Day Holiday) 

 



Council Agenda Report 
Cancellation Of Certain Council Meetings In 2016 
November 24, 2015 
Page 2 

 

PREPARED BY: Nicole Grisanti, Administrator’s Office Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, City Administrator  
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  9 

File Code No.  170.04 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 24, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Information Systems Division, Administrative Services Department 
 
SUBJECT: Collection Of High Resolution 3D Elevation/Terrain Data (LiDAR) 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Approve the expenditure of $75,000 and authorize the Administrative Services 

Director to negotiate, subject to approval by the City Attorney, an agreement with 
Channel Islands Regional Geographic Information Systems Collaborative for the 
acquisition and processing of High Resolution 3D Elevation/Terrain Data for the 
City’s Centralized Geographic Information System; and approve an additional 
$7,500 for contingency costs that may be necessary; and 

B. Appropriate $82,500 from Information Systems Fund Reserves to the Fiscal Year 
2016 Information Systems Budget for this purpose. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City has been offered an advantageous opportunity to perform a significant update 
and upgrade to its existing elevation/topographical data set through a partnership with 
the Channel Islands Regional Geographic Information Systems Collaborative (CIRGIS). 
 
Background 
 
The City’s Centralized Geographic Information System includes topographical data, 
which shows the various elevations and contours of the Earth’s surface for the City and 
surrounding areas.  The current topographical data set was acquired in 1995 using field 
survey technology and has not been updated since then.  The data does not extend 
beyond City limits, although City Water and Fire services often do. 
 
Topographical data is used by Police and Fire, Building and Safety, Planning, Public 
Works, Airport, and the Waterfront for many purposes, including:  
 

 Evaluating slopes for development purposes 
 Visualization of terrains and elevations 
 Calculation of hydraulic pressures for sewer and storm water flows 
 Emergency management, flood control, and planning 



Council Agenda Report 
Collection Of High Resolution 3D Elevation/Terrain Data (LiDAR) 
November 24, 2015 
Page 2 

 

 Evaluation of wild land vegetation  
 
The City is a member of CIRGIS, a non-profit organization that assists local agencies by 
coordinating the acquisition of geographical data for cost-sharing purposes.  CIRGIS 
has coordinated bi-annual acquisitions of aerial photos for public agencies in Santa 
Barbara and Ventura counties since 2007. The City first participated in a CIRGIS aerial 
photo collaboration project in 2012 with significant financial savings. 
 
Current Project 
 
CIRGIS has contracted with vendor Harris Government Communications Systems 
(Harris) to collect high resolution 3D elevation/terrain data via aircraft with Light 
Detection and Ranging (LiDAR) technology, prior to the predicted El Niño storm season.   
 
The data that will be collected through the project has many potential applications.  The 
data is expected to be collected by Harris at very high resolution, but licensed to 
participating agencies at eight points per square meter. This is still a very high 
resolution, and is considered quality level 1 by the US Geological Society (USGS) and 
would be more than adequate for current City applications.  Data collected by the USGS 
survey, for example, is only at two points per square meter, quality level 2.  The 
resolution that will be obtained by participating agencies exceeds FEMA guidelines and 
can be used to provide evidence of damage sustained in declared emergencies. 
Additional higher resolution data will be available to participating agencies from Harris at 
an additional fee, if it is ever needed.  For example, building outlines could be extracted, 
providing invaluable information about facilities and potential hazards to Police and Fire, 
Building and Safety, Planning, Public Works, Airport, and the Waterfront.   
 
CIRGIS conducted an extensive review process prior to awarding this contract to Harris.  
A Request for Information was sent on April 18, 2014, to 15 vendors nationwide.  
CIRGIS then sent Request for Proposals on February 28, 2015, to eight vendors.  Five 
vendors responded by the March 31, 2015 deadline.  A subcommittee comprised of 
CIRGIS board members reviewed these proposals and all five vendors were invited to 
interview.  Two CIRGIS board members and a representative from the City of Thousand 
Oaks comprised the interview panel.  The five vendors were evaluated based on 20 
weighted criteria. CIRGIS then ranked each company based on technical merit, 
expertise, past experience, references, and their fee proposal.  Based on this detailed 
analysis, Harris was ranked as first choice and was selected as the vendor. 
 
In order to complete the project, a sufficient number of CIRGIS agencies will need to 
commit to participation.  So far, nine agencies are expected to make a binding 
commitment prior to the flight.  The City is the only potential participant yet identified in 
Santa Barbara County, with the remainder of the agencies in Ventura County.  The flight 
area will depend on the final participants, but is expected to encompass most of Ventura 
County and only the City-requested portions of Santa Barbara County. 



Council Agenda Report 
Collection Of High Resolution 3D Elevation/Terrain Data (LiDAR) 
November 24, 2015 
Page 3 

 

City Participation 
 
Harris will process the collected data and deliver the following products to the City, for 
the area flown: 
 

 Access to the raw data collected, at an eight points per square meter resolution, 
from the fly-over area in a “Point Cloud.”  Additional data can be extracted from 
the cloud and processed for City use at a later date, for a fee. 

 A Digital Elevation Model of the Bare Earth Surface. 
 Contour lines to show changes in elevation (topography). 

 
CIRGIS has provided the city with two cost options, based on the coverage area flown. 
 

 A 45-square mile area that covers only the City limits and the area between the 
airport and the rest of the city, at a cost of $35,000. (Attachment 1) 

 A 108-square mile area that includes the 45-square mile area listed above, as 
well as the surrounding watershed and wild lands, at a cost of $75,000. 
(Attachment 2) 

 
Staff has committed to the 45-square mile area, but recommends the purchase of the 
108-square mile data set.  This area corresponds to the city’s existing aerial imagery, 
and includes the Gibraltar dam.  The smaller data set would not fully meet the needs of 
City departments, particularly the Fire Department, which provides mutual aid and wild 
land management in areas outside the City limits.  This data will give them the ability to 
evaluate vegetation, topographic, infrastructure and structure location to evaluate wild 
land project locations, impacts and suppression response over a large visual area that 
currently can only be evaluated on one dimensional aerial photos and topographic 
maps. 
 
The larger data set is also crucial to operations for the Water division of Public Works as 
it includes Gibraltar Dam and the surrounding watershed.  This data would be critical if 
the dam or its supporting infrastructure sustained damage during winter storms. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The opportunity to join the current CIRGIS project at $75,000 for the full 108-mile 
square area is expected to be significantly more cost effective for the City than if the 
City were to conduct its own LiDAR flight project.  The City did not budget for this 
expense in Fiscal Year 2016 and will fund the work from Information Systems reserves.  
Costs will be charged back to the departments who use the Centralized Geographic 
Information System database through allocated costs in Fiscal Year 2017. The General 
Fund portion of the cost is approximately $44,565.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Map of proposed 45-square mile area of coverage.  

2. Map of proposed 108-square mile area of coverage. 



Council Agenda Report 
Collection Of High Resolution 3D Elevation/Terrain Data (LiDAR) 
November 24, 2015 
Page 4 

 

 
PREPARED BY: Maryanne Knight, I.S. Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Kristy Schmidt, Administrative Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



µ

 Legend 
LIDAR TILES
CITY BOUNDARY

2

Miles

CIRGIS 2015 PROPOSED 
LIDAR PROJECT

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

ATTACHMENT 1



CIRGIS 2015 PROPOSED 
LIDAR PROJECT

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

µ

 Legend 
LIDAR TILES
CITY BOUNDARY

2

Miles

ATTACHMENT 2



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING CHAPTER 2.04 OF THE 
SANTA BARBARA MUNICPAL CODE PERTAINING TO 
COUNCIL MEETINGS 

 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. Chapter 2.04 of Title 2 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is 
amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
2.04.010 Regular Meeting Schedule. 
 
 Regular meetings of the City Council shall be held in the Council Chambers in 
the City Hall on each Tuesday of each week at a time set by resolution.  
 
 2.04.020 Rules of Procedure. 
 
 A.  The City Council shall from time to time adopt by resolution rules of procedure 
governing the conduct of City Council meetings. 
 B.  The rules of procedure adopted pursuant to this chapter are deemed to be 
procedural only and the failure to strictly observe such rules shall not affect the 
jurisdiction of the City Council or invalidate any action taken at a meeting that is 
otherwise held in conformity with law. 

 
 2.04.030 Decorum. 
 A. Councilmembers. While the City Council is in session, each Councilmember 
must preserve order and decorum, and a Councilmember shall neither by conversation 
or otherwise delay or interrupt the proceedings or the peace of the City Council nor 
disturb any Councilmember while speaking or refuse to obey the orders of the Mayor.  
 B. Persons addressing the City Council and persons in attendance at City 
Council meetings.  All persons addressing the City Council or in attendance at a City 
Council meeting shall comply with the rules of procedure adopted by resolution 
pursuant to this chapter. Any person in the audience who engages in disorderly conduct 
such as hand clapping, stamping of feet, whistling, using profane language, yelling and 
similar demonstrations, which conduct disturbs the peace and actually disrupts the good 
order of the meeting, or who refuses to comply with the lawful orders of the Mayor, shall 
be, upon instructions from the Mayor, removed from the meeting by the sergeant-at-
arms. 
 C.  Enforcement of decorum. The Chief of Police, or such member or members 
of the Police Department as he or she may designate, shall be sergeant-at-arms of the 
City Council and shall carry out all orders given by the Mayor for the purpose of 
maintaining order and decorum at the Council meetings. Any Councilmember may 

NOV 24 2015 #10 
120.02 



2 
 

move to require the Mayor to enforce the rules and the affirmative vote of a majority of 
the Council shall require the Mayor to do so. 
 D.  Authorized persons within rail. No person except City officials, their 
representatives and news media representatives, shall be permitted within the rail in 
front of the Council Chambers, without the express consent of the Mayor.  
  
2.04.040 Ordinances, Resolutions and Contracts. 
 
 A.  All ordinances shall be prepared for presentation to the City Council pursuant 
to the provisions of this chapter. All ordinances shall be prepared by the City Attorney. 
 B.  All ordinances, resolutions, and contract documents shall, before presentation 
to the Council, have been approved as to form and legality by the City Attorney and 
shall have been examined and approved for administration by the City Administrator, 
subject to any time limit imposed by this Code. 
 C.  At the time of introduction or adoption of an ordinance or a resolution, it shall 
be read in full, unless after the reading of the title thereof, the further reading thereof is 
waived by unanimous consent of the Councilmembers present. Such consent may be 
expressed by a statement by the Mayor to the effect that if there is no objection, the 
further reading of the ordinance or resolution shall be waived. All emergency ordinances 
must be read in full.  
  



Agenda Item No.  12 

File Code No.  110.03 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 24, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Clerk’s Office, Administrative Services Department  
 
SUBJECT: Certification Of The Election Results Of The Official Canvass For The 

General Municipal Election Of November 3, 2015 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 

Barbara Reciting the Fact of the Vote-By-Mail General Municipal Election Held 
on November 3, 2015, Declaring the Results and Such Other Matters as 
Required by the State Elections Code; and 

B. Receive a final presentation on the November 3, 2015 Election. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Vote-By-Mail General Municipal Election was held on Tuesday, November 3, 2015, 
for the purpose of electing three City Councilmembers who will represent City Council 
Districts 1, 2 and 3.  The Certification of Election Results of the Official Canvass from 
the City Clerk’s Office is an exhibit to the Resolution. 
 
As provided in the City Charter, the terms of office for Councilmembers Cathy Murillo 
and Randy Rowse, and Councilmember-Elect Jason Dominguez will begin on January 
12, 2016, the first scheduled meeting in January following the certification of election 
results.  A swearing-in ceremony will be held at the City Council meeting on that date. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Gwen Peirce, CMC, City Clerk Services Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Kristine Schmidt, Administrative Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ___ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA RECITING THE FACT OF THE VOTE-
BY-MAIL GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION HELD ON 
NOVEMBER 3, 2015 DECLARING THE RESULTS AND 
SUCH OTHER MATTERS AS REQUIRED BY THE STATE 
ELECTIONS CODE 

 
 
WHEREAS, a Vote-By-Mail General Municipal Election was held and conducted in the 
City of Santa Barbara on Tuesday, November 3, 2015, per the City Charter and as 
required by law;  
 
WHEREAS, notice of the election was given in time, form and manner as provided by 
law; that voting precincts were properly established; that election officers were 
appointed and that in all respects the election was held and conducted and the votes 
were cast, received and canvassed and the returns made and declared in time, form 
and manner as required by the provisions of the Elections Code of the State of 
California for holding of elections in charter cities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Clerk canvassed the returns of the election and has certified the 
results to this City Council, the results are received, attached and made a part hereof as 
“Exhibit A”. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.    Pursuant to the requirements of State Elections Code Sections 10264 
and 9269, the results of the City of Santa Barbara’s November 3, 2015, General 
Municipal Election are declared to be the following: 
 
A. That the whole number of ballots cast in the vote-by-mail precincts was 6,693 
and the whole number of provisional ballots cast in the vote-by-mail precincts was 78, 
making a total of 6,771 ballots cast in the City. 
 
B. That the names of persons voted for at the City’s General Municipal Election for 
Member of the City Council are as follows: 
 

District 1 District 2 District 3 
Cruzito Herrera Cruz Robert Burke Sharon Byrne 
Jason Dominguez Randy Rowse Cathy Murillo 
Michael Merenda K. Missy McSweeney-Zeitsoff Cristina Cardoso 
Andria Martinez Cohen Luis Esparza  
Jacqueline Inda   
 



 2 
 

C.   That the number of votes given at each precinct and the number of votes given in 
the City to each of the persons above named for the respective offices for which the 
persons were candidates as listed in Exhibit “A” attached. 
 
C. The City Council does declare and determine that Jason Dominguez was elected 
as Member of the City Council, District 1, for the full term of four years. 
 
D. The City Council does declare and determine that Randy Rowse was elected as 
Member of the City Council, District 2, for the full term of four years. 
 
E. The City Council does declare and determine that Cathy Murillo was elected as 
Member of the City Council, District 3, for the full term of four years. 
 
SECTION 2.  The City Clerk, by preserving a copy of this Resolution in the official 
records of the City, shall enter on the records of the City Council of the City, a statement 
of the results of the election, showing; (1) The whole number of ballots cast in the City; 
(2) The names of the persons voted for; (3) For what office each person was voted for; 
(4) The number of votes given at each precinct to each person; (5) The total number of 
votes given to each person, as required by State Elections Code Section 10264. 
  
SECTION 3.  That, as required by State Elections Code Section 10265, the City Clerk 
shall immediately make and deliver to each of the persons so elected a Certificate of 
Election signed by the City Clerk and authenticated; that the City Clerk shall also 
administer to each person elected the Oath of Office prescribed in the Constitution of 
the State of California and shall have them subscribe to it and file it in the office of the 
City Clerk.  Each and all of the persons so elected shall then be inducted into the 
respective office to which they have been elected in the manner and at the time so 
provided in the City Charter. 
 
SECTION 4.  That the City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this 
resolution and enter it into the book of original resolutions. 
 
  



Precinct # Herrera Cruz Dominguez Merenda
Martinez 
Cohen Inda Total Reg. Voters Ballots Cast Turnout %

1120 28 293 13 114 82 530 1,525 542 35.54%
1310 20 283 4 107 72 486 1,219 494 40.53%
1320 30 288 1 124 96 539 1,276 552 43.26%
1340 13 239 11 151 109 523 1,325 529 39.92%

District Totals 91 1,103 29 496 359 2,078 5,345 2,117 39.61%

Precinct # Burke Rowse
McSweeney-

Zeitsoff Esparza Total Reg. Voters Ballots Cast Turnout %
1172 18 218 47 56 339 1,112 344 30.94%
2010 15 337 65 54 471 1,720 479 27.85%
2030 7 229 35 45 316 968 321 33.16%
2040 13 252 60 96 421 1,100 426 38.73%
2090 8 275 36 61 380 1,055 385 36.49%
2110 32 456 66 69 623 1,830 631 34.48%
2160 15 363 81 70 529 1,346 543 40.34%

District Totals 108 2,130 390 451 3,079 9,131 3,129 34.27%

Precinct # Byrne Murillo Cardoso Total Reg. Voters Ballots Cast Turnout %
1110 112 171 13 296 975 299 30.67%
1130 102 279 50 431 1,254 438 34.93%
1170 163 347 46 556 1,460 563 38.56%
2122 68 144 11 223 534 225 42.13%

District Totals 445 941 120 1,506 4,223 1,525 36.11%

18,699 6,771 36.21%Citywide Turnout

ELECTION TALLY

Council Candidates, District 1

Council Candidates, District 2

Council Candidates, District 3

EXHIBIT A

CITY CLERK'S CERTIFICATE OF CANVASS

I, Gwen Peirce, City Clerk Services Manager of the City of Santa Barbara, do certify that I have canvassed the 
returns of the General Municipal Election held on November 3, 2015, and find that the number of votes given 
at each precinct and the number of votes given in the City to persons voted for, the respective offices for 
which the persons were candidates, were as follows:

 1



Code.  The results of the manual tally are as follows:

Precinct 
# Office/Candidate

Machine 
Tally

Manual 
Tally Differences   If discrepancy, how resolved

1320 City Council, District 1

Herrera Cruz 30 30 0
Dominguez 288 288 0
Merenda 1 1 0
Martinez Cohen 124 124 0
Inda 96 96 0

2010 City Council, District 2

Burke 15 15 0
Rowse 337 337 0
McSweeney-Zeitsoff 65 65 0
Esparza 54 54 0

1170 City Council, District 3

Byrne 163 163 0
Murillo 347 347 0
Cardoso 46 46 0

__________________________________________
Gwen Peirce, CMC
City Clerk Services Manager

Dated:  ___________________________________

ELECTION TALLY

I have also conducted a manual tally of 1% of the precincts in accordance with Section 15360 of the Election

2



Agenda Item No.  13 

File Code No.  530.04 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 24, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Transportation Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Approval Of The Citywide Wayfinding Directional Signage Program 

Including Project Funding And Installation Plan 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council approve the Citywide Wayfinding Directional Signage Program and 
authorize the Public Works Director to implement the installation of the signage as 
outlined in the recommended phasing plan and provide staff direction on funding future 
phases of the Wayfinding program. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On January 27, 2014, Council held a work session to review potential capital projects to 
be funded by approximately $4.3 million in one-time monies from the General Fund.  
Among the many projects for consideration was the Wayfinding Design Signage 
Upgrade Project (Project). The Project involved hiring a consultant with expertise in 
branding, signage, and municipal wayfinding to prepare a unified signage design within, 
and leading into, the downtown area, as well as gateway signage at major City inroads. 
At that work session, Council approved the use of $250,000 of General Fund monies 
toward the Project.   
 
On January 27, 2015, Council approved a Professional Services Agreement with the 
Pasadena based firm, Hunt Design, in the amount of $91,300 to review the City’s 
existing directional signage, offer suggestions for elimination and/or retention of the 
current inventory, and design a comprehensive, attractive, and cohesive citywide 
Wayfinding Directional Signage Program to improve multi-modal access, identification, 
and connectivity around Santa Barbara.  
 
Hunt Design developed the Citywide Wayfinding Directional Signage Program in close 
coordination with a comprehensive group of Community Stakeholders, City staff from 
multiple departments, and an ad-hoc design review sub-committee comprised of 
representatives from the Historic Landmarks Commission, Architectural Board of 
Review, and the Sign Committee. The Program was presented to the community 
stakeholder group in July 2015, the Visit Santa Barbara Board in September 2015, the 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of The Citywide Wayfinding Directional Signage Program Including Project 
Funding and Installation Plan 
November 24, 2015 
Page 2 

 

Downtown Parking Committee (DPC) in September 2015, and the Transportation and 
Circulation Committee (TCC) in October 2015.  All of these groups support the 
Program. Hunt Design also presented the Program to the Historic Landmarks 
Commission on October 21, 2015, and the Architectural Board of Review on October 
26, 2015. Both design review boards were in full support of the Program and forwarded 
it to the Sign Committee for approval. The Wayfinding Program is going before the Sign 
Committee on November 18, 2015, and staff will advise Council of the Committee’s 
action at the Council meeting. 
 
Hunt Design also considered other requests from stakeholders. Visit Santa Barbara 
requested the inclusion of the Red Tile Walking Tour and the Scenic Drive Tour while 
members of the TCC asked to address the retention of the regional Bike Route signs.  
To the satisfaction of Visit Santa Barbara, Hunt Design has incorporated a Historic 
Walking Tour on the pedestrian maps and staff has informed concerned TCC members 
that the existing regional bike signs will remain. 
 
The DPC has expressed a concern regarding the color background for the parking 
signs.  The ad-hoc subcommittee recommended a green background and the DPC 
strongly feels that a blue background will be more visible to drivers. The DPC requests 
that Council approve the blue background rather than the green background. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Citywide Wayfinding Directional Signage Program (Program) consists of 293 total 
directional sign panels, comprised of five (5) sign types – vehicular directional, parking 
directional, parking lot identification, pedestrian directional, and pedestrian maps. To 
minimize project costs, wherever possible, signage has been programed to utilize 
existing posts. However, where a new pole is necessary, Hunt Design has quantified an 
estimated cost differential using standard posts versus decorative posts, customarily 
required in the El Pueblo Viejo district (EPV). The estimated Program cost using 
standard posts is $629,500 plus a suggested 15 percent contingency totaling $723,925 
for any unforeseen constructed related complications. The estimated Program cost 
using decorative posts is $871,000 plus a suggested 15 percent contingency totaling 
$1,001,650.  These costs include the fabrication and installation of all sign panels as 
well as the supply of any necessary new poles. 
 
As an expert in municipal wayfinding, Hunt Design has prepared the following phasing 
plan (detailing cost estimates for the use of both standard posts and decorative posts). 
Although recommended by Hunt Design to include a 15 percent contingency as detailed 
above, the figures below represent a 10 percent contingency to reduce overall projected 
budgets, where possible.  
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of The Citywide Wayfinding Directional Signage Program Including Project 
Funding and Installation Plan 
November 24, 2015 
Page 3 

 

PHASE I: Pedestrian and Downtown Parking Wayfinding Directional Signs 
 
Downtown Santa Barbara will strongly benefit from the installation of pedestrian 
directional signs to start the project. The entire Program includes 42 Pedestrian 
Directional signs of which 32 are located in the downtown core and 10 on the 
waterfront.  Sufficient funds remain in the original design budget to fabricate and install 
the pedestrian directional signs in Phase I entirely, with a substantially reduced 
contingency at six percent, if authorization to use standard posts painted Malaga Green 
(versus the decorative posts as required in the EPV) is granted.  
 
Sign Type     Standard Post   Decorative Post 
      Cost Estimate   Cost Estimate 
Pedestrian Directional  $134,600   $191,600   
Phase 1 Total:    $134,600   $191,600 
Phase 1 (with a 10 percent contingency):  $148,060   $210,760 
 
Additionally, in Phase I, Hunt Design recommends removal and replacement of all 
downtown parking signage to address the concern of the DPC regarding the visibility of 
the parking lots. Sufficient funds exist in the Downtown Parking Capital budget to cover 
the cost of fabrication and installation of standard posts for all downtown parking 
directional and parking lot identification signs. 
 
Sign Type     Standard Post   Decorative Post 
      Cost Estimate   Cost Estimate 
Parking Directional     $44,800   $  68,800 
Parking Lot Identification Signs  $32,000   $  56,000   
Phase 1 Total:    $76,800   $124,800 
Phase 1 (with a 10 percent contingency): $84,480   $137,280 
 
PHASE II: Vehicular Wayfinding Directional Signage 
 
The Phase 2 Vehicular Signs are a network of wayfinding signs that are dependent on 
one another to get drivers to their destinations. Hunt Design strongly recommends that 
these signs be installed simultaneously as a network. 
 
Sign Type     Standard Post   Decorative Post 
      Cost Estimate   Cost Estimate 
Vehicular Large Directional  $  68,800   $  88,300 
Vehicular Medium Directional  $225,000   $273,000 
Vehicular Small Directional   $  44,500   $  71,500   
Phase 2 Total:    $338,300   $432,800 
Phase 2 (with a 10 percent contingency): $372,130    $476,080 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of The Citywide Wayfinding Directional Signage Program Including Project 
Funding and Installation Plan 
November 24, 2015 
Page 4 

 

PHASE III: Pedestrian Maps  
   
The Phase 3 Pedestrian Maps support the pedestrian sign program and can be added 
as funds become available. While these signs are important to the Program, they are 
independent of one another and can be added without being dependent on a sequence 
of wayfinding signs.  In the downtown EPV district, these maps identify the historic 
walking tour, which addresses the request of Visit Santa Barbara to identify the Red Tile 
Walking Tour in the wayfinding program. 
 
Sign Type     Standard Post   Decorative Post 
      Cost Estimate   Cost Estimate 
Pedestrian Map Signs  $65,000   $  95,000   
Phase 3 Total:    $65,000   $  95,000 
Phase 3 (with a 10 percent contingency): $71,000    $104,500 
 
PHASE IV: Waterfront Parking Directional Signage 
 
Revised parking signage in the waterfront will support the overall Program goal of 
creating a unified and cohesive family of signs for the entire City.  While these signs are 
important to the comprehensive program, they are not critical and can be added as 
funding permits.  
 
Sign Type     Standard Post   Decorative Post 
      Cost Estimate   Cost Estimate 
Parking Directional     $7,400   $13,400 
Parking Lot Identification Signs  $7,400   $13,400   
Phase 4 Total:    $14,800   $26,800 
Phase 4 (with a 10 percent contingency): $16,280   $29,480 
 
BUDGET AND FINANICAL INFORMATION 
 
PHASING RECOMMENDATION: 
 
$143,705 remains from the $250,000 that Council appropriated for this program. 
Utilization of these funds would cover the majority of fabrication and installation costs of 
standard posts in Phase 1 - Pedestrian Wayfinding Directional Signage. Downtown 
Parking has sufficient funds available in the Fiscal Year 2016 Capital budget to cover 
the cost of all downtown parking directional and parking lot identification signs. 
 
Staff will include a Phases II – IV during future Council discussions of Capital 
Improvement Program funding priorities. Funding using standard sign posts would 
require an additional $418,100, plus a ten percent contingency for a total of $459,910 
from the General Fund or, funding using decorative sign posts would require an 
additional $554,600, plus a ten percent contingency for a total of $610,060 from the 
General Fund.  Council could direct staff to appropriate funding over the next three 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of The Citywide Wayfinding Directional Signage Program Including Project 
Funding and Installation Plan 
November 24, 2015 
Page 5 

 

fiscal years to fully implement the program or appropriate the funds needed to complete 
the program all at once. 
 
Based on the complexity of the fabrication of the signs, Staff is recommending that Hunt 
Design provide Construction Administration. In this capacity, Hunt Design would be 
responsible for reviewing all shop drawings and material samples and overseeing the 
removal of existing signs and the installation of all new signs. There are sufficient funds 
remaining in the extra services portion of the original design contract executed between 
the City and Hunt Design to cover the Construction Administration costs. The benefit 
moving forward with the installation of all the signs at one time is having the expertise of 
Hunt Design for Contract Administration throughout the fabrication and installation of the 
entire Program. With a phased approach, Hunt Design would only provide Contract 
Administration for Phase 1, unless Council appropriates additional funds to keep them 
on retainer.  Alternately, should Council opt to not use Hunt Design for the additional 
phases, Council could approve the use of the Phase 1 sign fabricator for all remaining 
signs in the Program, which will guarantee quality control. Staff assigned to assist with 
this project will also have to work closely with Hunt Design during Phase 1 and thus 
would be available to take over subsequent phasing.  
 
PROJECT BENEFITS: 
 
Installation of the complete Program will afford the City an attractive and unified 
wayfinding directional signage system throughout Santa Barbara which will positively 
reflect the City’s identity and facilitate a visitor-friendly experience when driving, walking, 
or biking throughout the City.  
 
PREPARED BY: Browning Allen, Transportation Manager/TG/mj 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  14 

File Code No.  550.01 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 24, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Request From Councilmembers Rowse And Francisco Regarding 

Recreational Vehicle Restrictions  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council consider the request from Councilmembers Rowse and Francisco regarding 
Municipal Code 10.44.205(b), to forward to Ordinance Committee the addition of Item No. 
10, any other land deemed sensitive by the Chief of Police and the Public Works Director 
to the list of land uses that may have restricted recreational vehicle parking.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Attached is a memorandum from Councilmembers Rowse and Francisco requesting that 
Council discuss the addition of “land uses deemed sensitive by the Chief of Police and the 
Public Works Director” to the public streets in the city where recreational vehicles may be 
restricted.  
 
ATTACHMENT: Memorandum from Councilmembers Rowse and Francisco 

 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Grisanti, Administrator’s Office Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



jnichoson
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT


	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOCX
	4.DOC
	5.PDF
	6.PDF
	7.DOC
	8.PDF
	9.DOC
	10.PDF
	11.DOCX
	12.DOCX
	13.DOCX
	14.DOC
	15.DOC
	16.PDF
	17.PDF
	18.DOC
	19.DOC
	20.DOC
	21.PDF
	22.PDF
	23.DOC
	24.DOC
	25.DOC
	26.PDF
	27.DOC
	28.DOC
	29.PDF



